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Kien Long Commercial Joint Stock Bank
Statements of Board of Directors

The Bank’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the
Vietnamese Accounting System for Credit Institutions stipulated by the State Bank of Vietnam and the
relevant statutory requirements applicable to financial reporting. In the opinion of the Bank’s Board of
Directors:

(a) the consolidated financial statements set out on pages 5 to 90 give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of Kien Long Commercial Joint Stock Bank (“the Bank™) and
its subsidiary (together referred to as “the Group™) as at 31 December 2014, and of the
consolidated results of operations and the consolidated cash flows of the Bank for the year then
ended in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the Vietnamese Accounting
System for Credit Institutions stipulated by the State Bank of Vietnam and the relevant statutory
requirements applicable to financial reporting; and

(b) at the date of this statement, there arc no reasons to believe that the Bank’s Board of Directors
will not be able to pay its debts as and when they fall due.

The Bank’s Board of Directors has, on the date of this statement, authorised the accompanying
consolidated financial statements for issue.

Ho Chi Minh City, 30 March 2015
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District 1, Ho Chi Minh City
The Socialist Republic of Vietnam

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Shareholders
Kien Long Commercial Joint Stock Bank

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Kien Long Commercial Joint
Stock Bank (“the Bank™) and its subsidiary (together referred to as “the Group”), which comprise the
consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2014, the consolidated statements of income and
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended and the explanatory notes thereto which were authorised
for issue by the Bank’s Board of Directors on 30 March 2015, as set out on pages 5 to 90.

The Board of Dircctors’s Responsihility

The Bank’s Board of Dircctors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the
Vietnamese Accounting System for Credit Institutions stipulated by the State Bank of Vietnam and the
relevant statutory requirements applicable to financial reporting, and for such internal control as the
Board of Directors determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with Vietnamese Standards on Auditing. Those standards require
that we comply with cthical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Bank’s Board of Directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

KPMG Limited, a Vietnamease tmited Lab ity company and a membar
firm of the KPMG retwork of inds eat mrember firms affilated
wath KPMG Internatanal Cacpzrativa | KPMG Interpatanal ),

a Swissennty

and
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Auditor’s Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view, in all material respects,
of the consolidated financial position of Kien Long Commercial Joint Stock Bank and its subsidiary as
at 31 December 2014 and of their consolidated results of operations and their consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the Vietnamese
Accounting System for Credit Institutions stipulated by the State Bank of Vietnam and the relevant
statutory requirements applicable to financial reporting.

Other Matter

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013 were audited
by another firm of auditors whose report dated 10 March 2014 expressed an unqualified opinion on
those statements.

KPMG Limited’s Branch in Ho Chi Minh City
Vietnam
Operating registration certificate No.: 4114000230

C’
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Tran Dinh Vinh

Practicing Auditor Registration
Certificate No. 0304-2013-007-1 Certificate No. 0339-2013-007-1
Deputy General Director

Ho Chi Minh City, 30 March 2015




Kien Long Commercial Joint Stock Bank

16 — 18 Pham Hong That, Vinh Thanh Van Ward
Rach Gia City, Kien Giang Province, Vietnam
Consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2014

A ASSETS

¥ Cash on hand and gold

11 Balances with the State Bank of Vietnam

I  Deposits with and loans to other credit
institutions

1 Deposits

2 Loans

v Derivatives and other financial assets

VI Loans and advances to customers

1 Loans and advances to customers

2 Allowance for loans and advances to customers

VII  Investiment securities

I Available-for-sale securities

2 Held-to-maturity securities

3 Allowance for diminution in value of
investment securifies

VH  Capital contribution, long-term investments

I

4 Other long-term investments

IX Fixed assets

1 Tangible fixed assels

a Cost

b Aeccunndated depreciation

3 Intangible fixed assets

a Cost

b Aceumulated amortisation

XI Other assets

1 Receivables

2 Accrued interest and fees receivable

4 Other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

Note

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

Form B02/TCTD - HN

(Issued in accordance with Decision No.
16/2007/QD-NHNN dated 18 April 2007 of
the Governor of the State Bank of Vietnam)

31/12/2014 31/12/2013
VND VND
140,564,992,881 105,652,797,636
622,869,095,680 500,116,724,241
3,422,209,781,203  3,459,029,208,637
2,681,138,281,203  1,459,029,208,637
741,071,500,000  2,000,000,000,000
- 326,745,340
13,389,966,524,994  12,003,522,481,171
13,526,466,502,377  12,128,627,461,522
(136,499,977,383)  (125,104,980,351)
3,039,749,303,155  3,377,345,772,534
2,724,820,059,845  2,732,043,797,523
361,202,170,712 703,385,725,011
(46,272,927,402) (58,083,750,000)
46,199,100,000 69,521,100,000
46,199,100,000 69,521,100,000
958,094,136,362 661,720,877,267
246,420,850,473 133,018,604,858
308,655,962,312 176,243,293,854
(62,235,111,839) (43,224,688,996)
711,673,285,889 528,702,272,409
732,919,509,366 542,366,880,866
(21,246,223,477) (13,664,608,457)
1,484,272,634,125  1,194,553,215,733
429,443,811,729 326,194,352,416
931,507,586,581 808,077,575,588
123,321,235,815 60,281,287,729
23,103,925,568,400  21,371,788,922,559

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements



Kien Long Commereial Joint Stock Banlk

16 — 18 Pham Hong Thai, Vinh Thash Van Ward

Rach Gia City, Kien Giang Province, Vietnam

Consolidated balance sheet as at 31 Decentber 2014 (continued)

I

[

I

v

VI

vii

P )

VI

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

LIABILITIES

Deposits and borrowings from other credit

institutions
Deposits
Borrowings

Deposits from customers

Derivatives and other financial liabilities

Financed, entrusted and borrowed funds

bore risls by the Bank
Valuable papers issued

Other liabilities

Accrued interest and fees payable

Other liabilities

Provision for off-balance sheet commitments

TOTAL LIABILITIES

EQUITY

Capital and reserves
Capital

Charter capital
Treasury sharves
Reserves

Retained profits

TOTAL EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Form B02/TCTD - HN

(Issued in accordance with Decision No.
16/2007/0D-NHNN dated 18 April 2007 of

Note 31/12/2014

VYND

17 2,781,982,656,399
1,767,869,731,607
1,014,112,924,792

the Governor of the State Bank of Vietham)

31/12/2013
VND

3,627,404,022,212
1,335,728,022,212
2,291,676,000,000

18 16,570,527,274,744  13,303,626,908,749
8 7,004,652,427 -
- 78,754,950,033

- 500,000,000,000

380,303,871,307 386,297,269,204
290,984,323,840 296,975,803,483

19 89,319,547,467 88,710,724,543
20 - 610,741,178
19,739,818,454,877  17,896,083,150,198

21 3,364,107,113,523  3,475,705,772,361
2,965,800,000,000  2,965,800,000,000
3,000,000,000,000  3,000,000,000,000
(34,200,000,000) (34,200,000,000)
215,924,137,840 179,184,944,641
182,382,975,683 330,720,827,720
3,364,107,113,523  3,475,705,772,361
23,103,925,568,400  21,371,788,922,559

The accomparying nofes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements



Kien Long Commercial Joint Stock Bank

16— 18 Pham Hong Thai, Vinh Thanh Van Ward

Rach Gia City, Kien Giang Province, Victnam

Consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2014 (continued)

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS

1 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

] Letters of credit commitments
2 Other guarantees

Prepared by:

/)?\(/f /;L;,
¢ e
=
Thi Duyen
Accountant

Note

36
36

Form B02/TCTD - HN

(Issued in accordance with Decision No.
16/2007/QD-NHNN dated 18 April 2007 of
the Gavernor of the State Bank of Vietnam)

31/12/2014 31/12/2013
VND VND
140,091,935,336 70,397,559,043
124,524,033,170 25,486,453,722
15,567,902,166 44,911,105,321

30 March 2015

Pham Thi My Chi
Chief Accountant

NIRRT
===V Van Chau
General Director

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements



Kien Long Commercial Joint Stock Banlk Form B03/TCTD - HN

16 — 18 Pham Hong Thai, Vinh Thanh Van Ward (Issued in accordance with Decision No.
Rach Gia Cily, Kien Giang Province, Vietnam 16/2007/0D-NHNN dated 18 April 2007 of
Consolidated statement of income for the year ended the Governor of the State Bank of Vietnam)

31 December 2014

Note 2014 2013
VND VND

] Interest and similar income 23 2,094,846,122,923  2,389,127,368,645
2 Interest and similar expenses 23 (1,301,128,861,072) (1,354,768,346,351)
I Net interest income 23 793,717,261,851 1,034,359,022,294
3 Fee and commission income 24 6,002,993,594 7,018,460,719
4 Fee and commission expenses 24 (6,365,795,871) (6,342,101,822)
11 Net fee and commission (expenses)/income 24 (362,802,277) 676,358,897
111 Net (loss)/profit from trading of foreign

currencies 25 (1,245,521,452) 428,514,275
v Net profit/(loss) from trading of

investment securities 26 965,986,633 (58,179,576,064)
5 Other income 27 23,2006,567,969 14,746,259,555
6 Other expenses 27 (19,049,644,018) (1,478,764,449)
Vi Net other income 27 4,156,923.951 13,267,495,100
VI Income from capital contribution, long- 28

term investments 4,284,675,000 72,872,522,591
VHI Operating expenses 29 (525,316,001,974)  (587,586,861,106)
IX  Operating profit before allowance and

provision expenses for eredit losses 276,200,521,732  475,837.475,993
X Allowance and provision expenses for

credit losses 10,20 (42,489,037,491) (82,430,186,389)

XI Profit before tax

(carried forward to next page) 233,711,484,.241  393,407,289,604

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements



Kien Long Commercial Joint Stock Bank Form B03/TCTD - HN

16 — 18 Pham Hong Thai, Vinh Thanh Van Ward (Issued in accordance with Decision No.
Rach Gia City, Kien Giang Provinee, Victnam 16/2007/0D-NHNN dated 18 April 2007 of
Consolidated statement of income for the year ended the Governor of the State Bank of Vietnam)

31 December 2014 (continued)

Note 2014 2013
VND VND

XI Profit before tax

Q
(brought forward from previous page) 235, T11,484,241 R

7 Income tax expense - current 30 (57,798,822,191) (79,980,582,610)
8 Income tax expense - deferred 30 - :
XII Total income (ax expense 30 (57,798,822,191) (79,980,582,610)
XTIT Profit after tax 175,912,662,050 313,426,706,994
XV  Earnings per share 31 593 1,058

30 March 2015

Prepared by: Approved, SIGAN HAI
I 2— h—ﬂj{&zz’/ : el
’___—'—""_'_-_- L=

Thi Duyen Pham Thi My Chi T — o Van Chau
Aecountant Chief Accountant General Director

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements



Kien Long Commercial Joint Stock Bank

16 —18 Pham Hong Thai, Vinh Thanh Van Ward

Rach Gia City, Kien Giang Province, Vietnam
Conselidated statement of cash flows for the year ended
31 December 2014 (Direct method)

01
02
03

(4

05
06
07
08

09

10
11
12
13

14

16

17
18
19

20
21
22

Form BO4/TCTD - HN

{Issued in accordance with Decision No.
16/2007/0D-NHNN daied 18 April 2007 of
the Governor of the State Bank of Vielnan)

CASH FLLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Interest and similar income received

Interest and similar expenses paid

Net fee and commission (expenses
paid)/income received

Net receipts/(payments) from foreign
currencies, gold and securities trading activities
Other expenses paid

Collection of bad debts previously written-off
Salaries and operating expenses paid

Income tax paid

Cash flows firom operating activities before
changes in operating assets and liabilities

Changes in operating assets

Deposits with and loans to other credit
institutions

Invesiment securities

Derivatives and other financial assets

Loans and advances to customers

Utilisation of allowance for loans and advances
{o customers

Other assets

Changes in operating liabilities

Deposits and borrowings from other credit
institutions

Deposits from customers

Valuable papers issued

Financed, entrusted and borrowed funds bore
risks by the Bank

Derivatives and other financial liabilities
Other liabilities

Ultilisations of reserves

NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

2014 2013
VND VND
(reclassified)
1,971,416,111,930  2,386,280,825,403
(1,307,120,340,715)  (1,293,485,059,847)
(362,802,277) 676,358,897
(279,534,819) 337,723,887
(5,591,231,166) (95,851,750,652)
3,996,000,877 -
(490,033,881,922)  (561,480,124,632)
(44,711,687,141)  (156,953,221,149)
127,312,724,767 279,524,751,907
85,000,0060,600 1,415,000,000,000
337,596,469,379 437,087,728,136
326,745,340 (326,745,340)
(1,397,839,040,855) (2,445,150,230,873)
(31,704,781,637) -
(52,371,060,885)  (287,904,741,247)
(845,421,365,813) 619,913,531,919
3,266,900,365,995  2,652,129,935,061
(500,000,000,000)  (500,000,000,000)
(78,754,950,033) (23,701,608,467)
7,004,652,427 -
(18,314,883,973) 23,780,646,594
(20,931,320,888) (16,009,323,209)
878,803,553,824  2,154,343,944,481

The accompanying nofes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

10



Kien Long Commercial Joint Stock Bank

16 — 18 Pham Hong Thai, Vinh Thanh Van Ward

Rach Gia City, Kien Giang Province, Vietnam
Consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended
31 December 2014 (Direct method — continued)

Form B04/TCTD - HN

(Issued in accordance with Decision No.
16/2007/QD-NHNN dated 18 April 2007 of
the Governor of the State Bank of Vietnam)

2014 2013
VND VND
(reclassified)

CASIH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

01 Payments for additions of fixed assets and other
long-term assets

02 Proceeds from disposals of fixed assets

08 Receipts/(payments) from investment, capital
contribution in other entities

09 Receipts of dividends and distributions from

long-term investments, capital contribution

11 NET CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

(445,601,103,895)  (100,214,018,879)
11,616,014,321 -

23,322,000,000 (650,009,201)

4,284,675,000 722,531,792

(406,378,414,574)  (100,141,496,288)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

04 Dividends paid

111 NET CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

10Y NET CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR

v CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

VII CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
THE END OF THE YEAR (NOTE 32)

(266,580,000,000)  (266,580,000,000)

(266,580,000,000)  (266,580,000,000)

205,845,139,250  1,787,622,448,193

3,979,798,730,514  2,192,176,282,321

4,185,643,869,764  3,979,798,730,514

30 March 2015
Prepared by: Approy
DN’/ w I ._l”__;l/ , L
‘_.————_——_._-' = »,{/'
Thi Duyen Pham Thi My Chi Vo Van Chaun
Accountant Chief Accountant General Director

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

11



(a)

(b)

Kien Long Commercial Joint Stock Bank Form BOS/TCTD - HN

16 — 18 Pham Hong Thai, Vinh Thanh Van Ward {Issued in accordance with Decision No.
Rach Gia City, Kien Giang Province, Vietnam 16/2007/0D-NHNN dated 18 April 2007 of
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for ihe Governor of the State Bank of Vietham)

the year ended 31 December 2014

These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.

Reporting entity

Kien Long Commercial Joint Stock Bank (“the Bank”) is a commercial joint stock bank incorporated
in the Socialist Republic of Vietnam. The principal activities of the Bank are to carry out banking
activities, under Establishment and Operation Licence No. 0056/NH-GP issued by the State Bank of
Vietnan (“SBV”) on 18 September 1995 for a period of 50 years from the licence date.

The Bank’s Head Office is located at 16-18 Pham Hong Thai, Vinh Thanh Van Ward, Rach Gia City,
Kien Giang Province, Vietnam. As at 31 December 2014, the Bank has one head office, 26 branches
and 70 transaction offices nation-wide (31 December 2013: one head office, 26 branches and 69
{ransaction offices).

The Bank has one 100% owned subsidiary, Kienlongbank Asset Management Company — Kien Long
Commercial Joint Stock Bank. The subsidiary’s principal activities are debt management and assets
exploitation.

The consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2014 include the
financial statements for the Bank and its subsidiary (together referred to as “the Group™).

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had 1,795 employees (31/12/2013: 1,642 employees).

Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting
Standards, the Vietnamese Accounting System for Credit Institutions stipulated by the State Bank of
Vietnam and the relevant statutory requirements applicable fo financial reporting. These accounting
policies may differ in some material respects from International Financial Reporting Standards and the
generally accepted accounting principles and standards in other countries. Accordingly, the
accompanying consolidated financial statements arc not intended to present the financial position and
results of operations and cash flows in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and
practices in countries or jurisdictions other than Vietnam. Furthermore, their utilisation is not designed
for those who are not informed about Vietnamese accounting principles, procedures and practices.

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements, except for the consolidated statement of cash flows, are prepared
on the accrual basis using the historical cost concept. The consolidated statement of cash flows is
prepared using the direct method.

12



(c)

(d)

(a)

(b)

Kien Long Commercial Joint Stock Bank Form BOS/TCTD - BN

£6 — 18 Pham Hong Thai, Vinh Thanh Van Ward (Issued in accordance with Decision No.
Rach Gia City, Kien Giang Province, Vietnam 16/2007/QD-NHNN dated 18 April 2007 of
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the Governor of the State Bank of Vieinam)

the year ended 31 December 2014 (continued)

Annual accounting period

The annual accounting period of the Group is from | January to 31 December,

Accounting and presentation currency

The Group’s accounting currency is Vietnam Dong (“VND™). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Vietnam Dong,

Changes in accounting policies

Except for the changes below, the Group has consistently applied the accounting policies, as set out in
Note 4, to all periods presented in these consolidated financial statements.

The Group has adopted Circular No. 02/2013/TT-NHNN dated 21 January 2013 of the SBV regulating
the classification of assets, credit loss allowance level, allowance method and utilisation of allowance
in operations of credit institutions and foreign bank branches (“Circular 02”) and Circular No.
09/2014/TT-NHNN dated 18 March 2014 of the SBV on amendments and supplementation to certain
articles of Circular 02 (“Circular 09”) with the effective date of 1 June 2014 and on a prospective basis.
The adoption of Circular 02 and Circular 09 has affected the following accounting policies:

= Deposits with and loans to other credit institutions — classification and allowance for losses (Note
4(d));

»  Loans and advances to customers — classification and allowance for credit losses (Notes 4(e)(i) and
4(e)(it)); and

» Provision for off-balance sheet commitments (Note 4(f)).

Summary of significant accounting policies

The following significant accounting policies have been adopted by the Group in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements.

Foreign currency transactions

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than VND are translated into VND at
rates of exchange ruling at the reporting date. Transactions in currencies other than VND during the
year have been translated into VND at rates approximating those ruling on transaction dates.

All foreign exchange differences are recorded in the consolidated statement of income.

Classification of financial instruments

Solely for the purpose of providing disclosures about the significance of financial instruments to the
Group’s financial position and results of operations and the nature and extent of risk arising from
financial instruments, the Group classifies its financial instruments as follows:

13



(i)

Kien Long Commercial Joint Stoek Bank Form B0S/TCTD - HN

16 — 18 Pham Hong Thai, Vinh Thanh Van Ward (Issued in accordance with Decision No.
Rach Gia City, Kien Giang Province, Vietnam 16/2007/QD-NHNN dated 18 April 2007 of
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the Governor of the Stale Bank of Vietnam)

the year ended 31 December 2014 {continued)

Financial assels
Financial assets af fair value through profit or loss

A financial asset at fair value through profit or loss is a financial asset that meets either of the following
conditions:

= A financial asset at fair value through profit or loss is a financial asset that meets either of the
following conditions:

- it is acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term;

- there is evidence of a recent pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

- a derivative (except for a derivative that is financial guarantee contract or a designated and
effective hedging instrument).

= Upon initial recognition, it is designated by the Group as a financial asset at fair value through
profit or Joss.

Held-to-maturity invesiments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
and a fixed maturity that the Group has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity, other than:

» those that the Group upon initial recognition designates as at fair value through profit or loss;
« those that the Group designates as available-for-sale; and
= those that meet the definition of loans and receivables.

Laoans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market, other than those:

«  that the Group intends to sell immediately or in the near term, which are classified as held for
trading, and those that the Group on initial recognition designates as at fair value through profit or
{oss;

= that the Group upon initial recognition, designates as available-for-sale; or

»  for which the Group may not recover substantially all of its initial investment, other than because
of credit deterioration, which are classified as available-for-sale.

Available-for-sale financial assels

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are designated as available
for sale or that are not classified as:

» financial assets at fair value through profit or loss;
*  held-to-maturity investments; or
»  loans and receivables.



(i)

(c)

Kien Long Commercial Joint Stock Bank Form BO5/TCTD - HN

16 — 18 Pham Hong Thai, Vinh Thanh Van Ward (Isswed in accordance with Decision No.
Rach Gia City, Kien Giang Province, Vietnam 16/2007/0OD-NHNN dated 18 April 2007 of
Notes to the consolidated finaneial statements for the Governor of the State Bank af Vietnant)

the year ended 31 December 2014 (continued)

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

A financial liability at fair value through profit or loss is a financial liability that meets either of the
following conditions:

» It is considered by management as held for trading. A financial liability is considered as held for
trading if:
- it is incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term;
- there is evidence of a recent pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

- a derivative (except for a derivative that is financial guarantee contract or a designated and
effective hedging instrument).

*  Upon initial recognition, it is designated by the Group as a financial liability at fair value through
profit or oss.

Financial liabilities carried at amortised cost

Financial liabilities which are not classified as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
are classificd as financial liabilities carried at amortised cost.

The above described classification of financial instruments is solely for presentation and disclosure
purpose and is not intended to be a description of how the instruments are measured. Accounting
policies for measurement of financial instruments are disclosed in other relevant notes.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, balances with the State Bank of Vietnam and
deposits with and loans to other credit institutions with original term to maturity of not more than three
months.
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Deposits with and loans to other credit institutions

Deposits with other credit institutions do not include current deposits, which are time deposits with
original terms to maturity of not more than 3 months.

Loans to other credit institutions include loans to other credit institutions with original terms to maturity
of not more than 1 year.

Time deposits and loans to other credit institutions are stated at the amount of principal outstanding
fess allowance for credit losses.

Deposits with other credif institutions

Effective from I June 2014

The specific allowance is calculated based on the net credit exposure of each credit institution, i.c.
based on the credit institution’s deposit balance at the end of each quarter (except for quarter 4, specific
allowance is calculated based on the credit institution’s deposit balance as at 30 November) less the
discounted value of collateral assets. The discounted value of collateral assets is determined in
accordance with the following principles as set out in Circular 02 as described in Note 4(e)(ii).

Credit risk classification of deposits with other credit institutions (*debts”) and allowance thereof s
made in accordance with Circular 02 and Circular 09. The Group has classified deposits with other
credit institutions in accordance with a quantitative method as stipulated in Article 10 of Circular 02.
Specific allowance for credit losses on deposits with other credit institutions is calculated based on the
overdue status of the ouistanding principal or interest at the following rates:

Group Overdue status Allowance
rate
i Current (a) Current debts being assessed as fully and timely recoverable, both 0%
debts principal and interest; or
(b) Debts being overdue for less than 10 days and being assessed as
fully recoverable, both overdue principal and interest, and fully
and timely recoverable, both remaining principal and interest,
2 | Special (a) Debts being overdue between 10 days and 90 days; or 5%
mentioned | (3) Debts having been rescheduled terms of repayment for the first
debts time.
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debts

Allowance
Group Overdue status
rate
3 Sub- (a) Debts being overdue between 91 days and 180 days; or 20%

standard (b) Debts having been extended terms of repayment for the first time;
debts or

(¢) Debts having been exempted or reduced interest because customers

are not able to pay the interest according to the credit contract; or

(d) Debts having been fallen in one of the following cases:

* Debts {o customers or guarantee parties being organisations,
individuals who are not subjected to credit granting by credit
institutions, foreign bank branches as prescribed by laws;

»  Debts being secured by securities of the Bank or its subsidiaries
or debts being used to contribute capital to another credit
institution on the basis that collateral assets pledged to the Bank
are securities issued by the invested credit institution;

»  Unsecured debts or debts being granted under preferential
conditions or having value exceeding 5% of the Bank’s capital
when granting credit to restricted customers as prescribed by
faws;

» Debis to the Bank’s subsidiaries, associates or enterprises
controlied by the Bank that exceed the limit as prescribed by
faws;

* Debts having value exceeding credit limits, unless being
allowed as prescribed by laws;

= Debts having been violated the credit limit, foreign exchange
management and safety ratio applied to credit institutions,
foreign bank branches as prescribed by laws;

*  Debts having been violated the Bank’s internal regulations on
credit granting, debt management and policy on making
atlowance for losses; or

(e) Debts in the collection process under inspection conclusions.
4 | Doubtful | (a) Debts being overdue between 181 days and 360 days; or 50%

(b) Debts having been rescheduled terms of repayment for the first time
and being overdue less than 90 days according to the first
rescheduled terms of repayment; or

{c) Debts having been rescheduled terms of repayment for the second
time; or

(d) Debts specified in point (d) of Group 3 being overdue between 30
days and 60 days after the decisions of recovery have been issued,
or

(e) Debts in the collection process under inspection conclusions but
being overdue up to 60 days according to recovery term,
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How
Group Overdue status Allowance
rate
5 Loss (a) Debts being overdue more than 360 days; or 100%
debts (b) Debts having been rescheduled terms of repayment for the first fime

and being overdue more than 90 days according to the first
rescheduled terms of repayment; or

(¢) Debis having been rescheduled terms of repayment for the second
time and being overdue according fo the second reschedule terms
of repayment; or

(d) Debts having been rescheduled terms of repayment for the third
time or more, regardiess of whether the debts are overdue or not; or

(e) Debts specified in point (d) of Group 3 being overdue more than 60
days after the decisions of recovery have been issued; or

(D Debis in the collection process under inspection conclusions but
being overdue for more than 60 days according lo recovery term; or

(g) Debts to other credit institutions being announced under special
control status by the SBV, or to foreign bank branches of which
capital and assets are blockaded.

Prior to I June 2014

Deposits with other credit institutions are stated at the amount of outstanding principal. In accordance
with Circular No. 21/2012/TT-NHNN issued on 18 June 2012 by the SBV, effective from 1 September
2012 (“Circular 217) and Circular No. 01/2013/TT-NHNN issued on 7 January 2013 by the SBV
(“Circular 01”) to amend and supplement Circular 21, credit institutions are only allowed o undertake
deposits for which the maximum term is three months with credit institutions and foreign bank
branches. New deposits with term of more than three months and interest rate after the effective date
of these Circulars are classified as loans to other credit institutions.

Circular 21 and Circular 01 do not provide gnidance on how to account for and make allowance for
deposits with other credit institutions including those for which the payment terms have been extended
or are overdue. Accordingly, the Group did not make allowance for credit losses on deposits with
other credit institutions.

The above change in accounting policy has been applied prospectively. Application of changes in
accounting policies has no significant impact on the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2014,

Loans to other credif institutions

Effective from 1 June 20114

Loan classification of loans to other credit institutions and specific allowance thereof are made in
accordance with Circular 02 and Circular 09 being similar to allowances for credit losses on deposits
with other credit institutions as described in Note 4(d)(i).

In accordance with Circular 02, the Group is not required to make general allowance for loans to other
credit institutions.
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Prior to I June 2014

Specific allowance for credit losses on loans to other credit institutions is calculated based on the
overdue status of the outstanding principal or interest at the following rates:

Overdue status Allowance rate
Group | - Overdue less than 10 days 0%
Group 2 - Overdue from 10 days to 90 days 5%
Group 3 - Overdue from 91 days to 180 days 20%
Group 4 - Overdue from 181 days to 360 days 50%
Group 5 - Overdue more than 360 days 100%

In accordance with Decision No. 493/2005/QD-NHNN (“Decision 493”) issued by the SBV on 22
April 2005, a general allowance is made at 0.75% of total balance at the end of each quarter (except
for quarter 4, a gencral allowance is made at 0.75% of the outstanding balance of loans to other credit
institutions as at 30 November), excluding the total balance of loans to other credit institutions which
are classified as loss debts.

The above change in accounting policy has been applied prospectively. Application of changes in
accounting policies has no significant impact on the consolidated financial statements for the year

ended 31 December 2014,

Loans and advances to customers

Loans and advances to customers are stated at the amount of outstanding principal less allowance for
credit losses.

Classification of loans and advances to customers

Effective from 1 June 2014

Loan classification and allowance for losses are made in accordance with Circular 02 and Circular 09.
The Group has classified loans to customers in accordance with a quantitative method as permitted in
Article 10 of Circular 02,
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Loans and advances (o customers are classified into five loan groups in accordance with Article 10 of
Circular 02 as below:

Group Overdue status
1 | Corrent (a) Current loans being assessed as fully and timely recoverable, both principal and
loans interest; or

(b) Loans being overdue less than 10 days and being assessed as fully recoverable,
both overdue principal and interest, and fully and timely recoverable, both
remaining principal and interest.

2 | Special (a) Loans being overdue between 10 days to 90 days; or
mentioned | (b) Loans having been rescheduled terms of repayment for the first time.
loans

3 | Sub- (a) Loans being overdue between 91 days and 180 days; or

standard | (b) Loans having been extended terms of repayment for the first time; or

loans (c) Loans having been exempt or reduced interest because customers are not able
to pay the interest according to the credit contract; or
(d) Loans having been failen in one of the following cases:

»  Joans {o customers or guarantee parties being organisations, individuals
who are not subjected to credit granting by credit institutions, foreign bank
branches as prescribed by laws;

» Loans being secured by securities of the Bank or its subsidiaries or loans
being used to contribute capital to another credit institution on the basis
that collateral assets pledged to the Bank are securities issued by the
invested credit institution;

»  Unsecured loans or loans being granted under preferential conditions or
having value exceeding 5% of the Bank’s capital when granting credit to
resiricted customers as prescribed by laws;

»  Loans to the Bank’s subsidiaries, associates or enterprises controlled by the
Bank that exceed the limit as prescribed by laws;

= Loans having value exceeding credit limit, unless being allowed as
prescribed by laws;

= Loans having been violated the credit limit, foreign exchange management
and safety ratio applied to credit institutions, foreign bank branches as
prescribed by laws;

= Loans having been violated the Bank’s internal regulations on credit grant,
loan management and policy on making allowance for losses; or

(e) Loans in the collection process under inspection conclusions.

4 | Doubtful | (a) Loans being overdue between 181 days and 360 days; or

loans (b) Loans having been rescheduled terms of repayment for the first time and being
overdue less than 90 days according to the first rescheduled terms of
repayment; or

(c) Loans having been rescheduled terms of repayment for the second time; or

(d) Loans specified in point (d) of Group 3 being overdue between 30 days and 60
days after the decisions of recovery have been issued; or

(¢) Loans in the collection process under inspection conclusions but being overdue
up to 60 days according to recovery term.
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Group Overdue status

5 | Loss loans | {a) Loans being overdue more than 360 days; or

(b) Loans having been rescheduled terms of repayment for the first time and being
overdue more than 90 days according to the first rescheduled terms of
repayment; or

(c) Loans having been rescheduled terms of repayment for the second time and
being overdue according 1o the second rescheduled terms of repayment; or

(d) Loans having been rescheduled terms of repayment for the third time or more,
regardless whether the loans are overdue or not; or

(e) Loans specified in point (d) of Group 3 being overdue more than 60 days after
the decisions of recovery have been issued; or

(f) Loans in the collection process under inspection conclusions but being overdue
for more than 60 days according to recovery term; or

(g) Loans to other credit institutions being announced under special control status

by the SBV, or to foreign bank branches of which capital and assets are
blockaded.

Where a customer owes more than one debt to the Group, and has any of its debts classified into a
higher risk group of debts, the Group is obliged to classify the remaining debts of such customer into
the group of debts with higher risk corresponding with their level of risk.

Where the Group participates in a syndicated loan not as the lead bank, the Group reclassifies all debts
(including the outstanding syndicated loan) of the customer into a higher risk group of debt as
determined by the lead bank, participating banks and by the Group.

In accordance with Point 3a, Article 10 of Circular 02, amended and supplemented by Circular 09,
loan groups of rescheduled loans and advances to customers remain unchanged as before the
rescheduling provided that the following conditions are met:

=  The loan and advances to customers were granled under a credit facitity which does not violate
any laws or regulations;

= The reschedule of repayment term is in line with the purpose of the project as stated in the loan
agreement;

= The borrower used the loan for the correct purpose;

»  The borrower has a new loan repayment plan that is feasible and suitable to its conditions of
production, business, service; and

»  The Group remains in compliance with regulations of the SBV on limits, banking safety ratio
including the maximum ratio of short-term funding being used for medium and long-term lending
in case of restructuring shorl-term loans into medium-term or long-term loans.

As and when the above conditions are met, the Group reschedules the repayment terms of loans and
advances to customers without changing the loans and advances to customers’ current loan groups
accordance with Point 3a, Article 10 of Circular 09 which is effective from 20 March 2014 and will
expire on 1 April 2015,
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Prior to 1 June 2014

1n accordance with Decision 493, amended and supplemented by Decision No. 18/2007/QD-NHNN
dated 25 April 2007 (“Decision 18”) of the SBV, the specific allowance for losses should be made for
loans quarterly based on loan groups.

The Group also adopted Decision No. 780/QD-NHNN dated 23 April 2012 issued by State Bank of
Vietnam (“Decision 780”) regarding the classification of loans being rescheduled or having the
repayment terms cxtended under which such loans are classified in the same loan groups as before
rescheduling or having the repayment terms extended if the borrower is assessed as having posilive
business potential and ability to repay well these loans,

Loans and advances to customers are classified into five loan groups in accordance with Article 6 of
Decision 493 as below:

Group Overdie stalus
Current s Current loans or overdue loans less than 10 days.
: loans
¢ Loans being overdue between 10 days and 90 days; or
Special s Loans having been rescheduled terms of repayment for the first time (if
2 | mentioned customers are assessed as being capable of repaying both principal and
loans interest according to the first revised terms of repayment for the case of

enterprises and organisational customers).

» Loans being overdue between 91 days and 180 days;

Sub- » Loans having been rescheduled terms of repayment for the first time except
3 | standard for the loans with revised terms of repayment classified into the above
mentioned Group 2; or

loans
e Loans having exempt or reduced interest because customers are not able to
pay the interest according to the credit agreement.
e Loans being overdue between 181 days and 360 days;
Doubtful | * Loans having been rescheduled terms of repayment for the first time and

4 loans being overdue less than 90 days according to the first rescheduled terms of
repayment; or
e Loans having been rescheduled terms of repayment for the second time.

e Loans being overdue more than 360 days;

e Loans having been rescheduled terms of repayment for the first time and
being overdue from 90 days or more according to the first rescheduled terms
of repayment;

e Loans having been rescheduled terms of repayment for the second time and
being overdue according to the second rescheduled terms of repayment;

» Loans having been rescheduled terms of repayment for the third time; or

s Blocked loans, or loans awaiting settlement.

5 Loss loans
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Where a customer owes more than one debt to the Group, and has any of its debts classified into a
higher risk group of debts, the Group is obliged to classify the remaining debts of such customer into
the group of debts with higher risk corresponding with their level of risk.

Where the Group participates in a syndicated loan not as the lead bank, the Group reclassifies all debts
(including the outstanding syndicaied loan) of the customer into a higher risk group of debt as

determined by the lead bank and by the Group.

The above change in accounting policy has been applied prospectively.

Allowances for credit losses on loans and advances to customers

Effective from 1 June 2014

Specific allowance for credit losses on loans and advances to customers is calculated using set rates
applied to each loan group as follows:

Allowance rate

Group | - Cwrrent [oans 0%
Group 2 - Special mentioned loans 5%
Grougp 3 - Sub-standard loans 20%
Group 4 - Doubtful loans 50%
Group 5 - Loss loans 100%

The specific allowance is calculated based on the net credit exposure of each borrower, i.e. based on
the borrower’s loan balance at the end of each quarter (except for quarter 4, specific allowance is
calculated based on the borrower’s loan balance as at 30 November) less the discounted value of
collateral assets. The discounted value of collateral assets is determined in accordance with the
following principles as set out in Circular 02:

»  Collateral asset with value of VNDS50 billion or more for loans and advances to the Group’s related
parties or other parties under Article 127 of Law on Credit Institutions and collateral asset with

value of VND200 billion or more must be valued by a licensed asset valuation organisation.

»  Other than the above, collateral assets are valued in accordance with the Group’s internal policies
and processes.
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Type of coflateral assets Maximum
discounted ratio

(a) Customers deposits in VND 100%
(b} Gold billets, except for the types of gold specified in item (i); customers .

deposits in foreign currencies 95%
(c) Government bonds, transferable instruments, valuable papers issued by the

Bank, saving deposit certificates, certificates of deposit, bills and notes

issued by other credit institution or foreign bank branches: 95%

*  With a remaining term of less than 1 year SS‘VZ

*  With a remaining terin of between 1 year and 5 years 80%

*  With a remaining term of over 5 years
(d) Securities issucd by other credit institutions and listed on a stock exchange 70%
(e) Securities issued by enterprises and listed on a stock exchange 65%
(f) Unlisted securitics and valuable papers, except for the types of securities

specified in item (c) above, issued by other credit institutions registered for 0%

listing on a stock exchange; 0%

Unlisted securities and valuable papers, except for the types of securities

specified in item (c) above, issued by other credit institutions not registered

for listing on a stock exchange 30%
(g) Unlisted securities and valuable papers issued by enterprises registered for

listing on a stock exchange; 30%

Unlisted securities and valuable papers issued by enterprises not registered

for listing on a stock exchange 10%
(h) Real estate 50%
(i) Gold billets not having quoted price, other types of gold and other collateral

assets 30%

Collateral assets that do not satisfy the legal conditions as specified in Point 3, Article 12 of Circular
02 are deemed to have zero discounted value.

In accordance with Circular 02, a general allowance is made at 0.75% of the outstanding balance of
loans and advances to customers at the end of each quarter (except for quarter 4, a general allowance
is made at 0.75% of the outstanding balance of loans and advances to customers as at 30 November),
excluding the total balance of loans and advances to customers which are classified as loss loans.
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Prior fo I June 2014

Specific allowance for loans and advances to customers was calculated using allowance rate applied
to each loan group as follows:

Allowance rate

Group 1 - Current loans 0%
Group 2 - Special mentioned loans 5%
Group 3 - Sub-standard loans 20%
Group 4 - Doubtful loans 50%
Group 5 - Loss loans 100%

The specific allowance is calculated based on the net credit exposure of each borrower, i.e. based on
the borrower’s foan balance at the end of each quarter (except for quarter 4, specific allowance is
calculated based on the borrower’s loan balance as at 30 November) less the discounted value of
collateral assets. The discounted value of collateral assets is determined in accordance with Decision
493 and Decision 18 as follows:

Type of collateral assets Maximam
discounted ratio

Balance on deposit accounts, savings, valuable papers in VNI issued by credit
institutions 100%

Treasury bills, gold, balance on deposit accounts, savings, valuable papers in
foreign currencies issucd by credit institutions 95%

Government bonds:

»  With a remaining term of less than 1 year 95%
»  With a remaining term of between 1 year and 5 years 85%
= With a remaining term of over 5 years 80%

Securities, transferable instruments and valuable papers issued by other credit
institutions and listed on a stock exchange or at a securities trading centre 70%

Securities, transferable instruments and valuable papers issued by enterprises and
listed on a stock exchange or at a securities trading centre 65%

Securities, transferable instruments and valuable papers issued by credit

institutions but not yet listed on a stock exchange or at a securities trading centre 50%
Real estate 50%
Other types of collateral assets 30%
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In accordance with Decision 493, a general allowance was also required to be made at 0.75% of the
oulstanding balance of loans and advances to customers at the end of each quarter (except for quarter
4, a general allowance is made at 0.75% of the outstanding balance of loans and advances to cuslomers
as at 30 November), excluding the total balance of loans and advances to customers which were
classified as loss loans.

The above change in accounting policy has been applied prospectively.

Written-off loans and advances to customers classified as bad debts

Loans and advances to customers are written-off at the discretion of the Group’s Risk Settlement
Committee when they consider that all reasonable efforts for recovery of bad debts, including legal
actions, have been exhausted.

Loans and advances to customers are writlen-off against the allowance when loans and advances to
customers have been classified to Group 5 or when borrowers have declared bankrupt or dissolved (for
borrowers being organisations and enterprises) or borrowers are deceased or missing (for borrowers
being individuals).

Loans written-off against allowance are recorded as off-balance sheet items for following up and
collection. The amount collected from previously written-off loans, including the amount from sales
of collaterals against those loans, is recognised in the consolidated statement of income upon receipt.

Provision for off-balance sheet commitments

Off-balance sheet commitments consisting of guarantees, settiement acceptances, and unconditional
and irrevocable commitments with specific time for setttement.

Effective from I June 2014

The classification of off-balance sheet commiiments is conducted solely for risk management, credit
quality supervision of credit granting activities purpose in accordance with the same accounting policy
applied to loans and advances to customers as described in Note 4(e).
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Off-balance sheet commitments are classified as follows:

Group Definition
I | Group I — Current Commitments which, according to the Bank’s assessment, could be
commitments fully settled when they fall due.
2 | Group 2 - Special Commitments which, according to the Bank’s assessment, could not

mentioned commitments| be fully settled when they fall due.

3 | Group 3 — Sub-standard Commitments falling into one of the following cases:

commitments and higher]  Commitments to customers or guarantee parties being

risk groups organisations, individuals who are not subjected to credit
granting by credit institutions, foreign bank branches as
prescribed by laws;

e Commitments being secured by securities of the Bank or its
subsidiaries or commitments related to loans being used 1o
contribute capital to another credit institution on the basis that
collateral assets pledged to the Bank are securities issued by the
invested credit institution;

» Unsecured commitments or commitments being granted under
preferential conditions or having value exceeding 5% of the
Bank’s capital when granting credit to restricted customers as
prescribed by laws;

e Commitments to the Bank’s subsidiaries, associates or
enterprises controiled by the Bank that exceed the limit as
prescribed by laws;

¢ Commitments having value exceeding credit limits, unless being
allowed as prescribed by laws;

s Commitments having violated the credit limit, foreign exchange
management and safety ratio applied to credit institutions,
foreign bank branches as prescribed by laws;

e Commitments having been violated the Bank’s internal
regulations on credit granting, loan management and policy on
making allowance for losses.

In accordance with Circular 02, the Group is not required to make provision for off-balance sheet
commitments.

Prior to I June 2014

Off-balance sheet commitments are classified into five groups based on quantitative and qualitative
factors as follows:

Group Definition

1 | Current commitments * Undue commitments which, according to the Bank’s
assessment, can be fully settled when they fall due.

accordance with the Bank’s assessment.

2 | Special mentioned commitments| * Undue commitments which, according to the Bank’s
. assessment, can not be fully settled when they fall due;

3 | Sub-standard commitments or

4 | Doubtful commitments » Overdue commitments which are classified in

5

1.oss commitiments
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Specific provision for losses on off-balance sheet commitments was calculated using set rates applied
to each group of off-balance sheet commitments as follows:

Provision rates

Group | - Current commitments 0%
Group 2 - Special mentioned commitments 5%
Group 3 - Sub-standard commitments 20%
Group 4 - Doubtful commitments 50%
Group 5 - Loss commitments 100%

Specific provision is caleulated based on the net credit exposure of each customer which equals the
off-balance sheet commitiments balance at the end of each quarter (except for quarter 4, specific
provision is calculated based on the off-balance sheet commitment balance of each customer as at 30
November) less the discounted value of collateral assets. The discounted value of these collateral
assets is determined in accordance with Decision 493 and Decision 18 (Note 4(e)(ii)).

According to Decision 493, a general provision is also required to be made at 0.75% of the outstanding
balance at the end of each quarter (for quarter 4, a general provision is made at 0.75% of the outstanding
balance as at 30 November) of the off-balance sheet commitments and excludes the off-balance sheet
commitments which are classified as loss commitments.

The above changes in accounting policy has been applied prospectively. In applying the change in
accounting policy, the Group has reversed the provision amounted to VND616,741,178 during the

year.

Investment securities

Classification
Available-for-sale securities are equity securities and debt securities which are acquired to be held for
an indefinite period and may be sold at any time.

Held-to-maturity securities are debt securities with fixed or determinable payment and fixed maturities
where the Group's management has the positive intention and ability to hold until maturity,

Recognition

The Group recognises the available-for-sale securities and held-to-maturity securities on the date them
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of these securities (trade date accounting).

28



(iv)

Kien Long Commereial Joint Stock Bank Form BOS/TCTD - HN

16 — 18 Pham Hong Thai, Vinh Thanh Yan Ward (Issued in accordance with Decision No.
Rach Gia City, Kien Giang Province, Vietnam 16/2007/QD-NHNN dated 18 April 2007 of
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the Governor of the Stale Bank of Vietnam)

the year ended 31 December 2014 (confinued)

Measurement

The listed available-for-sale securities are stated at cost less allowance for diminution in value by
referring to the closing price of securities oblained from the Ho Chi Minh City Stock Exchange and
the Hanoei Stock Exchange at the reporting date.

Available-for-sale and held-to-maturity unlisted bonds issued by enterprises are stated at cost less
allowance for diminutien in value. Credit risk classification of unlisted bonds issued by enterprises
and allowance thereof is made in accordance with the same accounting policy applied for loans and
advances to customers as described in Note 4(e).

The unlisted available-for-sale securities that are actively traded on the OTC market are stated at cost
less allowance for diminution in value by referring to the average prices of the transaction quoted by
three securities companies having charter capital above VNID300 billion.

The unlisted available-for-sale securities which are not actively traded on the OTC market are stated
at cost less allowance for diminution in value are based on the Board of Directors” assessment. The
Board of Directors determines the allowance for diminution in value after giving consideration to cost,
market conditions, current operating performance and expected cash flows.

Held-to-maturity securities are stated at cost at the acquisition date and subsequently, these securities
are stated at cost less allowance for diminution in value when there is an indicator of devaluation in
the long-term period.

Premiums and discounts arising from purchases of available-for-sale securities and held-to-maturity
securities are amortised to the consolidated statement of income using the straight line method over
the period from the acquisition date to the maturity date,

Post-acquisition interest income of available-for-sale debt securities and held-to-maturity securities is
recognised in the consolidated statement of income on an accrual basis.

The allowance for diminution in the value of available-for-sale debt securities and held-to-maturity
securities as mentioned above is reversed if the recoverable amount increases because of the happening
of unprejudiced events after the allowance being recognised. An allowance is reversed only to the
extent that the securitics’ carrying amounts do not exceed the carrying amounts that would have been
determined if no allowance had been recognised.

Derecognition

Available-for-sale securities and held-to-maturity securities are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the investments have expired or the Group has transferred substantially all
risks and rewards of ownership.
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Special bonds issued by Vietnam Asset Management Company (“VAMC”)

Classification

Special bonds issued by VAMC as consideration for bad debts sold by the Group to VAMC are
recognised as held-to-maturity securities.

Recognition

Special bonds are recognised at par value at the transaction date.

Measurement

Special bonds are carried at par value less specific allowance during holding period.

Under VAMC’s bad debts purchasing scheme, par value of the special bond is equal to the carrying
value of bad debts sold net off specific allowance which was made but not yet utilised.

Specific allowance for losses in respect of the special bonds are required to be made in accordance
with Decree No. 53/2013/ND-CP dated 18 May 2013 and Circular No. 19/2013/TT-NHNN dated 6
September 2013 issued by the SBV. Accordingly, the Group makes specific allowance annually with
the minimum amount of 20% par value of each special bond within 5 working days prior to the date of
that year corresponding to the maturity date of the special bond. General allowance is not required to
be made for these special bonds.

When receiving back debts previously sold to VAMC, the Group uses the specific allowance for special
bonds to write-off bad debts and recognises the difference between allowance for special bonds and
the uncollectable foan balance in the consolidated statement of income.

Capital contribution, long-term investments

Other long-ferm investments

Other long-term investments include equity securitics and other long-term capital contribution which
are acquired to be hold over one year by the Group (excluding capital contribution, investments in
subsidiaries, joint-ventures and associates).

Other long-term investments are stated at cost less allowance for diminution in value which are made
under the guidance of Circular No. 228/2009/TT-BTC issued by the Ministry of Finance on 7
December 2009 (“Circular 228”) and amended and supplemented by Circular No. 89/2013/TT-BTC
issued by the Ministry of Finance on 28 June 2013 (“Circular §9”) (see Note 4(i)).
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Allowance for diminution in the value of long-term investments

Allowance for diminution in value of investments in economic entities is required if the economic
entities suffer losses (except when the loss was anticipated in the initial business plan) in accordance
with Circular 228 and Circular 89. Accordingly, the allowance for diminution in value is equal to the
difference between the actual capital contributed by all investors and the actual equity multiply (x)
with the percentage of actual capital contributed by the Group over total actual capital contributed by
all investors. The allowance is reversed if the recoverable amount increases after the allowance being
recognised. An allowance is reversed only to the extent that the investment’s carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined if no allowance had been recognised.

Tangible fixed assets

Cost

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. The initial cost of a tangible
fixed asset comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its
intended use. Expenditure incurred after the tangible fixed assets have been put into operation, such
as repairs, maintenance and overhaul costs, is charged to the consolidated statement of income in the
year in which the costs are incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the
expenditure has resulted in an increase in the future economic benefits expected to be obtained from
the use of an item of tangible fixed assets beyond its originally assessed standard of performance, the
expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of tangible fixed assets.

Depreciation

Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of items of tangible
fixed assets. The estimated usefui lives are as follows:

. buildings and structures 5 —50 years
. machinery and equipment 3 — 10 years
" motor vehicles 4 — 10 years
= office equipment 3 — 8 years
] other tangible fixed assets 3 -6 years

Intangible fixed asscts

Land use rights

Land use rights are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation. The initial cost of a land use right
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs incurred in conjunction with securing
the land use rights. Land use rights which are granted for a definite term are amortised, using the
straight-line method over 46 to 49 years. The indefinite land use right is not amortised by the Group.
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Software

Cost of acquiring new software, which is not an integral part of the related hardware, is capitalised and
treated as an intangible asset. Software cost is amortised on a straight-line basis over 3 to 10 years.

Derivative financial instraments

Forward and swap currency contracts

Forward currency contracts and swap currency contracts are recorded at contract values in the
consolidated balance sheet. The differences between the currency amounts which are committed to
buy/sell at contractual exchange rate and the currency amounts translated at the spot exchange rate at
effective date of the forward currency contracts and swap currency coniracts are amortised to the
consolidated statement of income on a straight-line basis over the terms of these contracits.

The positions of forward currency contracts are revaluated at the spot exchange rate at the reporting
date and the unrealised gains/losses are recognised in the consolidated statement of income.

Provisions

Other than the provision described in Note 4(f), a provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event,
the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to setile the obligation. Provisions are deterinined
by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability.

Severance allowance

Under the Vietnamese Labour Code, when an employee who has worked for the Group for 12 months
or more (“eligible employee”) voluntarily terminates his/her labour contract, the employer is required
to pay the eligible employee severance allowance calculated based on years of service from starting
date to 31 December 2008 and their average salary for the six-month period prior to the termination
date. Prior 1o 24 October 2012, provision for severance allowance has been provided based on
employees’ years of service for the Group and their current salary level.

On 24 Qctober 2012, the Ministry of Finance issued Circular No. 180/2012/TT-BTC (“Circular 180)
providing guidance on the accounting treatment in regards to making the provision for severance
allowance in enterprises. As stipulated in Circular 180, when preparing the financial statements in
2012, the outstanding balance of entity’s severance allowance is accounted to other income in 2012
instead of carrying forward to the following year. Accordingly, the Bank reversed the outstanding
balance of the provision for severance allowance. This change in accounting policy has been applied
prospectively from 2012.

Unemployment insurance is recognised as a part of salary expense and related expenses in the
consolidated statement of income.
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Other payables

Other payables are stated at their cost.

Taxation

Income tax on the profit or loss for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is
recognised in the consolidated statement of income except to the extent that it relates to ilems
recognised directly to equity, in which case it is recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted at
the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is provided using the conselidated balance sheet method, providing for temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and
the amounts used for taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected
manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities using the tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the reportling date.

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which the temporary difference can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Capital

Charter capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary
shares are recognised as a deduction from equity.

Share premium

On receipt of capital from shareholders, the difference between the issue price and the par value of the
shares is credited/debited to the share premium account in equity.

Treasury shares

When the Group repurchases its ordinary shares (treasury shares), the amount of the consideration
paid, which includes directly attributable costs, is recognised as a deduction from equity.

When treasury shares are sold or reissued subsequently, the amount received is recognised as an

increase in equity, and the resulting surplus or deficit on the transactions is transferred to/from share
premium,
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Statutery reserves
The Bank

According to Decree No. 57/2012/ND-CP dated 20 July 2012 issued by the Government, the Bank is
required to make the following allocations before distribution of profits:

Annual allocation Maximum balance
Reserve to supplement charter capital: 5% of profit after tax Charter capital
Financial reserve . 10% of profit after tax 25% charter capital

The remaining profit after deducting the appropriation of the above reserves and distribution of
dividends to the shareholders is recorded as retained profils of the Group.

Kienlongbank Asset Management Company — Kien Long Commercial Joint Stock Bank

According to Circular No. 27/2002/TT-BTC dated 22 March 2002 issued by the Ministry of Finance,
reserves are made on the same basis as applied to the Bank.

Bonus and welfare funds

Bonus and welfare funds are allocated from profit after tax decided by the shareholders at the Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders and are used primarily to make payments to the Group’s employees.
These funds are not required by law and are fully distributable. Bonus and welfare funds are included
in the Group’s liabilities.

Earnings per share

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is
calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to the ordinary shareholders of the Group by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is determined
by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to the ordinary sharcholders and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effect of all dilutive potential ordinary shares, which
comprise convertible bonds and share options.
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Revenue

Interest income

Interest income is recognised in the consolidated statement of income on an accrual basis, except for
interests on trading securities recognised in the consolidated statement of income upon receipt. When
a loan becomes overdue (from Group 2 to Group 5 as defined in Note 4(d) and 4(e)(ii)), expected
interest receivables are reverted and recognised in the off-balance sheet. Interest income of overdue
loans is recognised in the consolidated statement of income upon receipt.

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis with reference to the principal outstanding and
the applicable interest rate,

Fee and conmunission income

I'ees and commission income are recognised in the consolidated statement of income on the accrual
basis.

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised in the consolidated statement of income when the Group’s right to
receive dividend is established.

Share dividends and bonus shares are not recognised in the consolidated statement of income. The
Group only recognises the increases in the number of shares.

Interest expense

Interest expense is recognised in the consolidated statement of income on an accrual basis.

Fee and commission expenses

I'ee and commission expenses are recognised in the consolidated statement of income when incurred.

Operating lease payments

Payments made under operating leases are recognised in the consolidated statement of income on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Lease incentives received are recognised in the
consolidated statement of income as an integral patt of the total lease expense.

Dividend advances

Dividend advances for the Group’s shareholders are recognised as a receivable in the consolidated
balance sheet until the Group’s distribution is approved by the General Meeting of Sharcholders.
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Off-balance sheet items

Commitments and contingent liabilities

From time to time, the Group has outstanding commitments to extend credit. These commitments take
the form of approved loans and overdraft facilities. The Group also provides financial guarantees and
letters of credit to guarantee the performance of customers to third parties. The contingent liabilities
and commitments may expire without being advanced in whole or in part, Therefore the amounts do
not represent a firm commitment of future cash flows.

Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that is engaged either in providing related
products or services (business segment), or in providing products or services within a particular
economic environment (geographical segment), which is subject to risks and rewards that are different
from those of other segments. The Group’s primary format for segment reporting is based on business
segments.

At present, the Group is mainly operating in commercial bank and asset management in same
geographical segment which is Vietnam.

Nil balances

Items or balances required by Decision No. 16/2007/QD-NHNN dated 18 April 2007 issued by the
Governor of the State Bank of Vietnam on promulgation of financial statement reporting for credit
institutions that are not shown in these consolidated financial statements indicate nil balances.

Cash on hand and gold

31/12/2014 31/12/2013
VND YND
Cash on hand in VND 113,863,591,405 87,062,426,112
Cash on hand in foreign currencies 26,701,401,476 18,050,589,669
Gold - 539,781,855

140,564,992,88 1 105,652,797,636
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These balances consist of a compulsory reserve for liquidity and a current account at the SBV.

Under the State Bank of Vietnam’s regulations relating to the compulsory reserve, banks are permitted
to maintain a floating balance for the compulsory reserve requirement (“CRR”). The monthly average
balance of the reserve must not be less than CRR rates muitiply with preceding month’s average

balances of deposits in scope as follows:

Deposits in scope

Preceding month's average balances of:

CRR rates

31/12/2014 31/12/2013

Customers:

*» Deposits in foreign cwrrencies with term of less than 12 months 8% 8%
*» Deposits in foreign currencies with term of 12 months and above 6% 6%
* Deposits in VND with term of less than 12 months 3% 3%
* Deposits in VND with term of 12 months and above 1% 1%
Overseas credit institutions:

* Deposits in foreign currencies 1% 1%

31/12/2014 31/12/2013
VND VND

Current account and compulsory reserve

Effcctive year-end annual interest rates were as follows:

Deposits in VND
» Within the compuisory reserve requirement
» Exceeding the compulsory reserve requirement

Deposits in USD
» Within the compulsory reserve requirement
= Exceeding the compulsory reserve requirement

622,869,095,680 500,116,724,241

31/1272014 31/12/2013

1.20% 1.20%
0.00% 0.00%
0.00% 0.00%
0.05% 0.05%
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Deposits with and loans to other credit institutions

Current accounts
Current accounts in VND
Current accounts in foreign currencies

Term deposits
Term deposits in VND

Term deposits in foreign currencies

Loans in VND

Effective year-end annual interest rates are as follows:

Current accounts in VND

Current accounts in foreign currencies
Term deposits in VND

Term deposits in foreign currencies
Loans in VND

31/12/2014 31/12/2013
VYND VND

26,180,873,157  1,231,892,765,089
137,568,008,046 142,136,443,548
1,266,000,000,000 85,000,000,000
1,251,389,400,000 -
741,071,500,000  2,000,600,000,000
3,422,209,781,203  3,459,029,208,637

31/12/2014 31/12/2013

1.00% - 1.20%
0.05% - 0.25%
3.40% - 4.80%
0.90% - 1.00%
3.80% - 4.50%

1.00% - 1.20%
0.05% - 0.24%
5.20% - 8.00%

5.20% - 8.00%

Derivatives and other financial assets/liabilities

As at 31 December 2014

Forward contracts

As at 31 December 2013

Forward contracts

Total contract value
(at foreign exchange rate
at the contract date)
VND

195,017,798,431

Total carrying value
(at foreign exchange rate
at the reporting date)

Assets Liabilities
VND VND
- 7,004,652,427

Total contract value
(at foreign exchange rate at
the contract date)
VND

159,259,335,968

Total carrying value
(at foreign exchange rate
at the reporting date)

Assets Liabilities
VND VND
326,745,340 .
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Loans and advances to customers

Loan portfolio by type of borrowers was as follows:

Loans to domestic economic entities and individuals
Loans by financed and entrusted funds

Loan portfolio by loan group was as follows:

Group 1 - Current loans

Group 2 - Special mentioned loans
Group 3 - Sub-standard loans
Group 4 - Doubtful loans

Group 5 - Loss loans

Loan portfolio by term was as follows:

Short-term loans
Medium-term loans
Long-term loans

Loan portfolio by type of business was as follows:

Joint stock companies, limited liability companies,
private companies
Individuals and others

Form BOS/TCTD - N

(Issued in accordance with Decision No.
16/2007/QD-NHNN dated 18 April 2007 of
the Governor of the State Bank of Vietnam)

31/12/72014 31/12/2013
VYND VND
13,388,432,900,195  12,051,007,608,654

138,033,602,182 77,619,852,868
13,526,466,502,377  12,128,627,461,522
31/12/2014 31/12/2013
VND VYND
13,230,121,443,255  11,743,394,174,158
32,120,152,538 85,512,621,776
32,077,224,767 39,462,414,850
28,967,109,220 48,905,796,395
203,180,572,597 211,352,454,343
13,526,466,502,377  12,128,627,461,522
31/12/2014 31/12/2013
VYND VND

8,114,322,302,044
4,910,312,391,885
501,831,808,448

6,011,478,460,977
5,563,027,360,920
554,121,639,625

13,526,466,502,377  12,128,627,461,522
31/12/2014 31/12/2013
YND VND
3,065,242,419,400  2,543,276,964,158

10,461,224,082,977

9,585,350,497,364

13,526,466,502,377

12,128,627,461,522
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Loan portfolio by business sector of customers was as follows:

31/12/2014 31/12/2013
VND VND
Agriculture and forestry 3,319,619,640,735  3,379,079,599,044
Trading, motor vehicle and household applicant repairing  2,499,785,150,795 2,615,599,945,898
Construction 1,449,968,587,445  1,251,957,233,965
Processing industry 562,650,582,879 252,363,896,818
Hotels and restaurants - 241,406,006,807 3005,631,835,372
Transportation, warehousing, and communication 7,913,220,000 8,427,299,424
Aquaculiure 1,800,000,060 6,720,0006,000
Individual and community services 5,443,323,313,716  4,308,847,651,001
13,526,466,502,377 12,128,627,461,522

Loan portfolio by currency was as follows:

31/12/2014 31/12/2013

VND VND
Denominated in VND 13,493,919,967,437 12,010,706,440,957
Denominated in foreign currencies 32,540,534,940 117,921,020,565
13,526,466,502,377 12,128,627,461,522

The effective annual interest rates at the year-end were as follows:

31/12/2014 31/12/2013
Denominated in VND 6.30% - 24.00% 9.00% - 24.60%
Denominated in foreign currencies 4.77% - 5.04% 6.50%
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Allowance for loans and advances to customers

Allowance for loans and advances to customers consists of;

31/1272014 31/12/2013
VND VND
General allowance (i) 94,921,548,159 81,051,618,596
Specific allowance (i) 41,578,429,224 44,053,361,755

136,499,977,383 125,104,980,351

Movements in the general allowance for loans and advances to customers during the year were as
follows:

2014 2013

VND VYND
Opening balance 81,051,618,596 68,869,740,257
Allowance made during the year 13,869,929,563 39,014,209,312
Alowance utilised during the year - (26,832,330,973)
Closing balance 94,921,548,159 81,051,618,596

Movemeitts in the specific allowance for loans and advances to customers during the year were as
follows:

2014 2013

VYND VND
Opening balance 44,053,361,755 73,004,431,074
Allowance made during the year 29,229.849,1006 43,242,835,827
Allowance utilised during the year (31,704,781,637) (72,193,905,146)
Closing balance 41,578,429,224 44,053,361,755
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Investment securities

Available-for-sale securities
Debit securities
= Government bonds (i)

Equity securities

= TIssued by other local credit institutions (ii)

Allowance for diminution in the value of
available-for-sale sccurities (iii)

Held-to-maturity securities
Debt securities

= Bonds issued by other local credit institutions

= Special bonds issued by VAMC (iv)

Allowance for losses on held-to-maturity securities {(v)

Form BOS/TCTD - HN

(Issued in accordance with Decision No.
16/2007/QD-NHNN duted 18 April 2007 of
the Governor of the State Bank of Vietnam)

31/12/2014 31/12/2013
VND VND

2,200,070,309,845  2,172,294,047,523

524,749,750,000 559,749,750,000

2,724,820,059,845  2,732,043,797,523

{10,283,750,000) (58,083,750,000)

2,714,536,309,845  2,673,960,047,523

- 500,000,000,000
361,202,170,712 203,385,725,011

361,202,170,712  703,385,725,011
(35,989,177,402) .

325,212,993,310 703,385,725,011

3,039,749,303,155  3,377,345,772,534

As at 31 December 2014, available-for-sale debt securities amounting to VND1,050,000,000,0600
(31/12/2013: VNDG00,000,000,000) are pledged at other credit institutions to carry out the open

market operations.

Available-for-sale equity securities at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013 are listed shares of a
local credit institution which is Saigon Thuong Tin Commercial Joint Stock Bank (“STB”) and unlisted
shares in the OTC market which is Mekong Development Joint Stock Commercial Bank (“MDB”).
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(iii)

(iv)

v)

Kien Long Commercial Joint Stock Bank Form BOS/TCTD - HN

16 — 18 Pham Hong Thai, Vinh Thanh Van Ward (Issued in accordance with Decision No.
Rach Gia City, Kien Giang Province, Vietnam 16/2007/QD-NHNN dated 18 April 2007 of
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the Governor of the Staie Bank of Vietnam)

the year ended 31 December 2014 (continued)

Movements in the allowance for diminution in the value of available-for-sale securities during the year
were as follows:

2014 2013

VND VND
Opening balance 58,083,750,000 -
Allowance made during the year 10,283,750,000 58,083,750,000
Allowance reversed during the year (23,083,7506,000) -
Net off with investments relating to share dividends from
STB’s shares (35,000,000,000) -
Closing balance 10,283,750,600 58,083,750,000

This is par values of special bonds issued by VAMC to acquire the Group’s bad debts in 2014 and
2013. As at 31 December 2014, total of principal debis and the specific allowance amounting to
VND445,896,699,102 and VND84,694,528,390, respectively (31/12/2013: VND262,165,019,764 and
VNDS58,779,294,753, respectively).

Movements in the allowance for fosses on held-to-maturity securities during the year were as follows:

2014

VND
Opening balance "
Allowance made during the year 35,989,177,402
Closing balance 35,989,177,402
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12.

(1)

Kien Long Commercial Joint Stock Bank Form BO5/TCTD - HN

16 — 18 Pham Hong Thai, Vinh Thanhk Van Ward {Issied in accordance with Decision No.
Rach Gia City, Kien Giang Province, Vietnam 16/2007/QD-NHNN dated 18 April 2007 of
Notes fo the consolidated financial statements for the Governor of the State Bank of Vietnam)

the year ended 31 December 2014 (continued)

Capital contribution, long-term investments

31/12/2014 3171272013
VND VND
Other long-term investments (i) 46,199,100,6Q00 69,521,100,000

Other long-term investments where the Group has an equity interest of less than 20%:

31/12/2014 31/12/2013
VND VYND
Investments in other domestic credit institutions
e Uinlisted 40,949, 100,000 64,271,100,060
= Delisted 5,250,000,000 5,250,000,000

46,199,100,000 69,521,100,000
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15.

(1)

Kien Long Commercial Joint Stock Bank

16 — 18 Pham Hong Thai, Vinh Thanh Van Ward
Rach Gia City, Kien Giang Province, Vietnam
Notes te the consolidated f{inancial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2014 (continued)

Form BO5/TCTD - HN

{Issned in accordance with Decision No.
16/2007/QD-NHNN dated 18 April 2007 of
the Governor of the State Bank of Vietnam)

Receivables
31/12/2014 31/12/2013

VND VND
Construction in progress (i) 257,830,082,505 144,473,343,920
Interest receivable from the SBV for Interest subsidy
program 3,822,083,833 3,822,083,833
Deposits for office rental and advances for contracts 9.307,508,950 12,761,517,312
Deductible value added tax 3,387,536 1,107,573,707
Advances to employees 1,681,138,734 8,522,176,052
Dividend advances 148,1006,000,000 148,100,000,000
Others 8,699,610,171 7,407,657,592

429,443,811,729 326,194,352,416

Movements in consiruction in progress during the year were as follows:

2014 20313

VND VND
Opening balance 144,473,343,920 63,373,307,778
Additions 326,495,984,359 181,216,765,973
Transfers to tangible fixed assets (111,419,447,345)  (32,706,601,131)
Transfers to intangible fixed assets (101,158,190,500) (67,380,755,300)
Transfers {0 other assets (462,294,717) (1,151,600)
Transfers to expenses (99,313,212) (28,221,800)
Closing balance 257,830,082,505 144,473,343,920

49



16.

17.

Kien Long Commercial Joint Stock Bank

16 — 18 Pham Hong Thai, Vinh Thanh Van Ward
Rach Gia City, Kien Giang Province, Vietnam
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2014 (continued)

Other assets

Prepaid expenses

Tools and instruments

Payments on behalf of other credit institutions
Collaterals awaiting resolution

Form BOS/TCTD - HN

{Issued in accordance with Decision No.
16/2007/QD-NHNN dated 18 April 2007 of
the Governor of the State Bank of Vietnam)

Deposits and borrowings from other credit institutions

Demand deposits in VNI

Term deposits
Term deposits in VNI
Term deposits in foreign currencies

Borrowings
Borrowings in VND
Borrowings in foreign cutrencies

Effective year-end annual interest rates were as follows:

Demand deposits in VND

Term deposits in VND

Term deposits in foreign currencies
Borrowings in VND

Borrowings in foreign currencies

31/12/2014 31/12/2013
VND VND
65,540,225,377 51,696,429,034
2,613,725,207 8,010,000
19,385,004 76,848,695
55,147,900,227 8,500,000,000
123,321,235,815 60,281,287,729
31/12/2014 31/12/2013
VND VND
2,041,031,607  1,220,728,022,212
524.347,500,000 115,000,000,600
1,241,481,200,600 -
1,013,065,556,268  2,000,000,000,000
1,047,368,524 291,676,000,000
2,781,982,656,399  3,627,404,022,212
31/12/2014 31/12/2013

[.00% - 1.20%
3.50% - 4.90%
0.50% - 1.00%
3.70% - 6.00%

0.75%

1.00% - 1.20%
2.70% - 8.00%

2.710% - 7.00%
0.50%
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18.

Kien Long Commercial Joint Stock Bank

16 — 18 Pham Hong Thai, Vinh Thanh Van Ward

Rach Gia City, Kien Giang Province, Vietnam

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for

the year ended 31 December 2014 (continued)

Deposits from customers

Current accounts
Current accounts in VND
Current accounts in foreign currencies

Term deposits in VND

Saving deposits

Current saving deposits in VND

Current saving deposits in foreign currencies
Term saving deposits in VND

Term saving deposits in foreign currencies

Margin deposits
Margin deposits in VND
Margin deposits in foreign currencies

Form BOS/TCTD - HN

(Issued in accordance with Decision No.
16/2007/QD-NHNN dated 18 April 2007 of
the Governor of the State Bank of Vietnam)

Deposits from customers by type of customers were as follows :

Limited liability companies
Joint stock companies
Private companies
Individuals

Others

Effective annual interest rates at the year-end were as follows:

Current accounts in VND

Current accounts in foreign currencies

Term deposits in VND

Current saving deposits in VND

Current saving deposits in foreign currencies
Term saving deposits in VND

Term saving deposits in foreign currencies
Margin deposits in VND

Margin deposits in foreign currencies

31/12/2014 31/12/2013
VYND VND

384,218,200,240 200,348,227,833
491,411,351 1,153,358,151
491,630,199,036 296,037,660,793
4,224,601,639 3,452,499.811
242,658,397 347,605,231
15,241,157,555,325  12,518,739,534,540
433,360,669,905 268,114,048,424
1,450,906,688 10,229,805,061
13,751,072,163 5,204,168,905
16,570,527,274,744  13,303,626,908,749

31/12/2014 31/12/2013

VND VYND

325,343,881,087 154,647,417,267
280,265,110,424 52,324,420,981
1,079,291,241 29,964,199,941
15,811,952,613,956  12,964,008,667,822
151,886,378,036 102,682,202,738
16,570,527,274,744  13,303,626,908,749

31/12/2014 31/12/2013
1.00% 1.20%
0.25% 0.10%
1.00% - 10.10% 1.00% - 14.00%
1.00% 1.20%
0.25% 1.00%

1.00% - 14.00%
0.75% - 2.50%
0.60%

0.00%

1.00% - 14.00%
0.12% - 2.50%
0.00%

0.00%
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19.

¢)

(i)

Kien Long Commercial Joint Stock Bank

16 — 18 Pham Hong Thai, Vinh Thanh Van Ward
Rach Gia City, Kien Giang Province, Vietnam
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2014 {continued)

Other Liabilities

Taxes payable (i}

Payables to employees
Amounts awaiting settlement
Bonus and welfare fund (ii)
Remittance payables

Other payables

Taxes payable:

Value added tax
Corporate income tax
Personal income tax

Form BOS/TCTD - HN

(Issued in accordance with Decision No.
16/2007/QD-NIINN dated 18 April 2007 of
the Governor of the State Bank of Vietnam)

Movements of bonus and welfare fund during the year were as follows:

Opening balance

Reclassification from other reserves (Note 21)
Amount made during the year

Amount utilised during the year

Closing balance

31/12/2014 31/12/2013
VND VND
49,566,410,023 32,505,835,117
23,240,329 5,859,812,176
16,858,580,520 20,567,438,317
2,723,623,755 .
2,146,642,360 2,885,337,075
18,001,050,480 26,892,301,358
89,319,547,467 $8,710,724,543
31/12/2014 31/12/2013
VND VND
119,270,633 116,291,698
32,013,233,734 18,926,098,684
17,433,905,656 13,463,444,735
49,566,410,023 32,505,835,117
2014
VND
4,181,900,583
224,772,569
(1,683,049,397)
2,723,623,755
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20.

Kien Long Commercial Joint Stoek Bank Form B&5/TCTD - AN

16 — 18 Pliam Hong Thai, Vinh Thanh Van Ward {Issned in accordance with Decision No.
Rach Gia City, KKien Giang Province, Vietnam 16/2007/QD-NHNN dated 18 April 2007 of
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the Governor of the State Bank of Vietnam)

the year ended 31 December 2014 (continued)

Provision for off-balance sheet commitments

Movements in provision for off-balance sheet commitments during the year were as follows:

2014 2013

VND VND
Opening balance 610,741,178 437,599,928
Provision made during the year - 173,141,250
Provision reversed during the year (610,741,178) -
- 610,741,178

Closing balance
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Kien Long Commercial Joint Stock Bank Form BO5/TCTD - HN

16 — 18 Pham Hong Thai, Vinh Thanh Van Ward (Issued in accordance with Decision No.
Rach Gia City, Kien Giang Province, Vietnam 16/2007/QD-NHNN dated 18 April 2007 of
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the Governor of the State Bank of Vietnam)

the year ended 31 Decentber 2014 (continued)

Charter capital

31/12/2014 31/12/2013
Number of Number of
shares VYND shares VYND

Authorised charter capital 300,000,000 3,000,000,000,000 300,000,000 3,000,000,000,000

Issued charter capital
Ordinary shares 300,000,000 3,000,000,000,000 300,000,000 3,000,000,000,000

Treasury shares
Ordinary shares (3,800,000)  (34,200,000,000)  (3,800,000)  (34,200,000,000)

Shares in circulation
Ordinary shares 296,200,000 2,965,800,000,000 296,200,000 2,965,800,000,000

All ordinary shares of the Group have a par value of VND10,000. Each share is entitled to one vote at
meetings of sharcholders of the Group. Shareholders are entitled to receive dividends as declared from
time to time. All ordinary shares are ranked equally with regard to the Group’s residual assets, In
respect of shares bought back by the Group, all rights are suspended until those shares are reissued.

There was no movement in charter capital for the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013.

Dividends

The General Meeting of Shareholders of the Group on 15 April 2014 resolved to distribute dividends
amounied to VND266,580,000,000 in cash, this amount included dividend advances as at 31 December
2013 amounting to VND148,100,000,000 (Note 15) (2013: VNID266,580,000,000).
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23.

Kien Long Commercial Joint Stock Bank

16 — 18 Pham Hong Thai, Vinh Thanh Van Ward
Rach Gia City, Kien Giang Province, Vietnam
Naotes to the consolidated financial statements for
the year cnded 31 December 2014 (continued)

Net interest income

Interest and similar income from

Deposits with and loans (o other credit institutions
Loans and advances fo customers

Investiment securities

Guarantee services

Others

Interest and similar expenses on

Deposits and borrowings from other credit institutions
Deposits from customers

Valuable papers issued

Others

Form BO5/YCTD - HN

(Issued in accordance with Decision No.
1672007/0D-NHNN dated 18 April 2007 of
the Governor of the State Bank of Vietnan)

2014 2013
VND VYND
85,531,195,123 33,090,790,578

1,874,813,659,718  2,131,381,710,619
129,289,512,399 221,264,624,754
1,113,519,876 -
4,098,235,807 3,390,242,694

2,094,846,122,923  2,389,127,368,645

(48,688,781,903)  (63,981,521,646)
(1,145,166,379,768)  (878,515,377,336)
(17,283,577.932)  (157,285,193,379)
(89,990,121,469)  (254,986,253,990)

(1,301,128,861,072) (1,354,768,346,351)

793,717,261,851 1,034,359,022,294

56



24.

Kien Long Commercial Joint Stock Bank

16 — 18 Pham Hong Thai, Vinh Thanh Van Ward
Rach Gia City, Kien Giang Province, Vietnam
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2014 (continued)

Net fee and commission (expense)/income

Fee and conunission income
Guarantee services

Settlement and cashiering services
Others

Fee and commission expenses
Settlement and cashiering services
Others

Form BOS/TCTD - HN

(Issued in accordance with Decision No.
16/2007/QD-NHNN deted 18 April 2007 of
the Governor of the State Bank of Vietnam)

2014 2013

VND VND
. 1,604,508,975
5,848,265,475 4,787,408,779
154,728,119 626,542,965
6,002,993,594 7,018,460,719
(5,702,676,843) (5,922,776,491)
(663,119,028) (419,325,331)
(6,365,795,871) (6,342,101,822)
(362,802,277) 676,358,897
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26.

Kien Long Commercial Joint Stock Bank

16 — 18 Pham Hong Thai, Vinh Thanh Van Ward
Rach Gia City, Kien Giang Province, Vietnam
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for
the ycar ended 31 December 2014 (continued)

Net (loss)/profit from trading of foreign currencies

Form B0OS/TCTD - HN

{Issued in accordance with Decision No.
16/2007/0D-NHNN dated 18 April 2007 of
the Gavernor of the State Bank of Vietnam)

2014 2013

VND VND
Profits from trading of foreign currencies
* Spot foreign currency contracts 28.450,149,124 6,828,365,398
» Derivatives 08,000,099 448 595,689
*  (Others 101,843,145 4,376,670
Losses on trading of foreign currencies
» Spot foreign currency contracts (10,211,463,476) (6,503,881,835)
* Derivatives (19,653,646,469) (146,329,534)
» Others (403,875) (202,612,113)

(1,245,521,452) 428,514,275

Net profit/(loss) from trading of investment securities

2014 2013

VYND VYND
Profits from trading of investment securities 24,662,575,118 -
Losses on trading of investment securities {(507,411,683) {95,826,064)
Reversals of aliowance for diminution in the value of
investiment securities 23,083,750,000 -
Allowance made for diminution in the value of
investment securities (46,272,927,402) (58,083,750,000)

965,986,633 (58,179,576,064)
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28.

Kien Long Commercial Joint Stock Bank

16 — 18 Pham Hong Thai, Vinh Thanh Van Ward
Rach Gia City, Kien Giang Province, Vietnam
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2014 (continued)

Net other income

Other income

Proceeds from disposals of fixed assets

Proceeds from bad debts previously written off
Proceeds from selling debts to VAMC

Proceed from contracts breached by counterparties
Others

Other expenses

Net book value of disposed fixed assets
Expenses on social activifies

Others

Form BO5S/TCTD - HN

(Issued in accordance with Decision No.
16/2007/QD-NHNN dated 18 April 2007 of
the Governor of the State Bank of Vietnan)

Income from capital contribution, long-term investments

Dividends

2014 2013
VND VND
11,616,014,321 515,088,182
3,996,090,877 2,990,773,874
5,789,548,000 -
. 10,000,000,000
1,804,914,771 1,240,397,499
23,206,567,969 14,746,259,555
(5,863,950,081) (686,121,412)
(13,181,855,000) -
(3,838,937) (792,643,037)
(19,049,644,018) (1,478,764,449)
4,156,923,951 13,267,495,106
2014 2013
VND VND
4,284,675,000 72,872,522,591
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29.

Kien Long Commercial Joint Steck Bank
16 — 18 Pham Hong Thai, Vinh Thanhk Van Ward
Rach Gia City, Kien Giang Province, Vietnam

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for

the year ended 31 December 2014 (continued)

Operating expenses

1. Tax, duties and fees

2. Salaries and related expenses
In which:

Salaries and allowances
Contributions related to salaries
Others

3. Expenses on assets

In which:

Depreciation and amortisafion expenses
Office rental expenses

Repair and maintenance expenses
Purchases of equipiment expenses

Other expernises

4. Administration expenses

In which:

Marketing, promotion and printing expernses
Perdiem

Utility, office cleaning and gasoline expenses
Commumication, teclhnology research expenses
Training expenses

Meeting, reception and festival expenses
Others

5. Insurance expenses for deposits from customers

Form BO5S/TCTD - HN

(Issued in accordance with Decision No.
16/2007/QD-NHNN dated 18 April 2007 of
the Governor of the State Bank of Vietnam)

2014 2013

VND VND
14,630,332,983 14,379,749,075
267,469,553,738 211,057,372,807
229,525,392,450 182,969,177,327
25,285,102,528 23,132,542,251
12,659.058,760 4,955,653,229
103,461,850,768 97,406,456,304
29,767,351,425 23,478,527,750
39,381,261,834 44,670,841,598
19,668,436,842 19,223,472.830
14,133,854,083 9,314,574,015
510,746,584 719,040,171
120,379,996,485 248,782,441,860
49,641,408,042 187,225,953,576
4,415,975,012 7,612,992,525
21,078,093,351 19,239,470,193
13,282,511,241 10,992,900,074
2,221,303,830 2,229,479,633
20,481,508,620 14,402,745,764
9,259,196,389 7,078,900,095
19,374,268,000 15,960,841,000
525,316,001,974 587,586,861,106
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30.
(a)

(b)

(c)

Kien Long Commercial Joint Stock Bank

16— 18 Pham Hong Thai, Vinh Thanh Van Ward
Rach Gia City, Kien Giang Province, Vietnam
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2014 (continued)

Income tax

Recognised in the consolidated statement of income

Current tax expense

Current year

Under provision in prior years

Deferred tax expense

Income tax expense

Reconciliation of effective tax rate

Profit before tax

Tax at the Bank’s tax rate
Tax exempt income
Non-deductible expenses
Under provision in prior years

Income tax expense

Applicable tax rates

Form BOS/TCTD - HN

(Issued in accordance with Decision No.
16/2007/0D-NHNN dated 18 April 2007 of
the Governor of the State Bank of Vietnam)

2014 2013
VND VND
50,098,822,191 79,980,582,610
7,700,000,000 -
57,798,822,191 79,980,582,610
57,798,822,19] 79,980,582,610
2014 2013
VND VND
233,711,484,241 393,407,289,604
51,352,362,884 98,198,713,258
(1,288,922,633) (18,218,130,648)
35,381,940 -
7,700,000,000 -
57,798,822,191 79,980,582,610

The Bank’s income tax rates are 22% and 25% of taxable profits for the years ended 31 December 2014

and 2013, respectively.

The usual income tax rate applicable to enterprises before any incentives is 22% for 2014 and 2015, and

will be reduced to 20% from 2016.

Kienlongbank Asset Management Company - Kien Long Commercial Joint Stock Bank has an

obligation to pay the government income tax at the rate of 20% of taxable profits.

The calculation of income tax depends on the consideration and approval from tax authorities.
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31.

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Kien Long Commercial Joint Stock Bank Form B05/TCTD - HN

16 — 18 Pham Hong Thai, Vinkh Thank Van Ward
Rach Gia City, Kien Giang Province, Victnam

(Issued in accordance with Decision No.
16/2007/QD-NHNN dated 18 April 2007 of

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the Governor of the State Bank of Viemain)

the year ended 31 December 2014 (continued)

Farnings per share

Basic earnings per share

The caleulation of basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2014 was based on profit
attributable fo ordinary shareholders of VND175,912,662,050 (31/12/2013: VND31 3.426,706,994) and
a weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding of 296,200,000 (2013: 296,200,000},

calculated as follows:

Net profit aftributable to ordinary sharelolders

2014 2013

VND VND
Net profit attributable to ordinary shareholders 175,912,662,050 313,426,706,994
Weighted average number of ordinary shares

2014 2013

VND VND
Ordinary shares issued at the beginning of the year and at
the end of the year 296,200,000 296,200,000
Basic earnings per share

2014 2013

VND VND
Basic earnings per share 593 1,058
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32.

33.

Kien Long Commercial Joint Stock Bank

16 — 18 Pham Hong Thai, Vinh Thanh Van Ward
Rach Gia City, Kien Giang Province, Vietnam
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2014 (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand and gold

Balances with the State Bank of Vietnam

Deposits with and loans to other credit institutions with
original terms to maturity of not more than three months

Employees’ benefits

Total average number of employees
Income of employees

1. Salaries

2. Bonus

3. Total income (1+2)

Average annual salary/employee
Average annual income/employee

Form BO5/TCTID - HN

{Issued in accordance with Decision No.
16/2007/QD-NHNN dated 18 April 2007 of
the Governor of the State Bank of Vietnam)

31/12/2014 31/12/2013

YND VND
140,564,992,881 105,652,797,636
622,869,095,680 500,1106,724,241
3,422,209,781,203  3,374,029,208,637
4,185,643,869,764  3,979,798,730,514

2014 2613

VND VND
1,795 1,642
210,198,971,619 162,337,596,251
19,326,420,831 20,631,581,076
229,525,392,450 182,969,177,327
117,102,491 98,865,771
127,869,299 111,430,680
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34.

35.

Kien Long Commercial Joint Stock Bank
16 — 18 Pham Hong Thai, Vinh Thanh Van Ward

Rach Gia City, Kien Giang Province, Vietnam

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for

the year ended 31 December 2014 (continued)

Obligations to the State Budget

Form BO5/TCTD - HN

{Isswed in accordance with Decision No.
1672007/Q1D-NHNN dated 18 April 2007 of
the Governor of the State Bank of Vietnam)

2014 Opening Movements Closing
balance Incurred Paid balance
VND VND VND VND

Value added tax 116,291,698 963,550,724 (960,571,789 119,270,633
Corporate income tax 18,926,098,684  57,798,822,191 (44,711,687,141) 32,013,233,734
Personal income tax 13,463,444,735  17,058,4206,143 (13,087,965,222) 17,433,905,656
32,505,835,117  75,820,799,058  (58,760,224,152) 49,566,410,023

2013 Opening Movements Closing

balance Incurred Paid bhalance

VND VND VND YND
Value added tax 128,726,072 083,280,502 (695,714,876) 116,291,698
Corporate income tax 05,808,737,223  79,980,582,610 (156,953,221,149) 18,926,098,684
Personal income tax 690,387,834  13,834,208,107 (1,061,151,206) 13,463,444,735
96,717,851,129  94,498,071,219 (158,710,087,231) 32,505,835,117
Type and value of collaterals received from customers
31/12/2014 31/12/2013
VND VND

Real estate 19,853,244,159,726 22,587,753,757,643
Inventories 264,846,648,849 298,624,699,888
Machineries and equipments 6,503,620,526,616 7,328,310,384
Shares and valuable papers 33,797,914.870 4,731,795,982,527
Others 207,134,245,598 648,925,336,303

26,859,643,495,659 28,274,428,092,745

64



36.

Kien Long Commercial Joint Stock Bank

16 — 18 Pham Hong Thai, Vinh Thanh Van Ward
Rach Gia City, Kien Giang Provinece, Yietnam
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for

the year ended 31 December 2014 (continued)

Contingent liabilities and commitments issued

Letters of credit
commitments
Other guarantees

Form BO5/TCTD - HN

(fssued in accordance with Decision No.
16/2007/QD-NHNN dated 18 April 2007 of
the Governor of the State Bark of Vietnan)

31/12/2014 31/12/2013
Contractual Marginal Contractual Marginal
amount deposits amount deposits
VND VND VND VIND
138,275,105,333 (13,751,072,163) 35,716,258,783 (5,204,168,905)
17,018,808,854 (1,450,906,688) 50,115,274,226  (10,229,805,061)
155,293,914,187  (15,201,978,851) 85,831,533,009  (15,433,973,966)
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38.

Form BOS/TCTD - HN

{Issued in accordance with Decision No,
16/2007/QD-NHNN dated 18 April 2007 of
the Governor of the State Bank of Vietnam)

Kien Long Commercial Joint Stock Bank

16 — 18 Pham Hong Thai, Vink Thanh Van Ward
Rach Gia City, Kien Giang Provinee, Vietnam
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2014 (continued)

Significant transactions and balances with related parties

As at the year-end and during the year, therc were the following significant balances and transactions

with related parties:

Closing balance

31/12/2014

31/12/2013

Receivables/(payables)

VND VND
Member of Board of Management
Deposits (550,859,343) (14,000,287,495)
Interest payables (7,240,304) (7,035,623)
Menmther of Board of Directors
Deposits (2,382,182,244) (2,973,583,417)
Interest payables (26,949,473} (41,956,992)
Member of Board of Supervisors
Deposits (526,853,583) (83,327,853)
Interest payables (12,236,322) (5,644)
Transactions incurred during the year 2014 2013

VND VND
Member of Board of Management
Deposits 83,162,035,071 166,656,495,938
Interest expenses on deposils 53,933,607 262,149,207
Salaries and bonus 6,414,233,334 4,654,972,222
Member of Board of Directors
Deposits 24,225,225,501 23,522,336,287
Interest expenses on deposits 197,676,528 11,858,937
Salaries and bonus 6,489,453,111 5,820,134,417
Member of Board of Supervisors
Deposits 14,863,256,867 7,733,661,003
Interest expenses on deposits 1,294,985 303,486
Salaries and bonus 1,886,666,667 1,518,833,333
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(a)

Kien Long Commercial Joint Stock Bank Form BOS/TCTD - HN

16 — 18 Pham Hong Thai, Vinh Thanh Van Ward (Issued in accordance with Decision No.
Rach Gia City, Kien Giang Province, Vietnam 16/2007/QD-NHNN dated 18 April 2007 of
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the Governor of the State Bank of Vietnam)

the year ended 31 December 2014 {continued)

Financial risk management

Financial risk management

The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

= credit risk;
» liquidity risk; and
= market risk.

This note presents information about the Group’s exposure to cach of the above risks, the Group’s
objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk.

The Group established a Risk Management Cominittee (“RMC”) and set out ils roles and
responsibilities as follows:

* The Risk Management Committee is responsible for:

- Consulting the Board of Management (“BOM”) on issuing the procedures and policies relating
to risk management in banking activities as stipulated in the prevailing laws and the Bank’s
charter.

- Analysing and providing warnings on the Bank’s safety level against potential risks exposures
and shori-term as well as Jong-ferm preventive measures,

- Reviewing and evaluating the appropriateness and the effectiveness of the Bank’s current risk
management policies in order to recommend and propose (o the BOM required changes to
existing procedures and policies as well as operational strategies.

- Consulting the BOM on investment decisions, related party transactions, management policies
and risk management solutions within its responsibility.

The RMC is responsible for reporting to the BOM and meet on a regular basis or an ad-hoc basis but
at least semi-annually.
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16 — 18 Pham Hong Thai, Vinh Thanh Van Ward {Issued in accordance with Decision No.
Rach Gia City, Kien Giang Province, Vieinam 16/2007/QD-NHNN dated 18 April 2007 of
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for ihe Governor of the State Bank of Vietnam)

the year ended 31 December 2014 (continued)

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations,

Management of credit risk

Credit risk arises mainly from lending activities and investment activities involving investments in debt
securities. The Group manages and monitors credit risk by setting the risk limit which the Bank is
willing to accept for individual counterparty, and by monitoring exposures in relation to such limits.

The Group has cstablished a credit quality review process to provide early identification of possible
changes in the creditworthiness of counterparties. Limits for each counterparty are established by the
use of a credit risk classification system in accordance with the SBV’s regulations. System assigns
cach counterparty a risk rating. Risk ratings are subject to quarterly review. The credit quality review
process allows the Group to assess the potential loss as a result of the risks to which it is exposed fo
and take corrective actions on a timely basis.

Collaterals
The value and type of collaterals required depend on the credit risk assessment of the counterparty.
Guidelines are issued and implemented regarding the acceptability of types of collateral and collaterals

assessment. The main types of collateral obtained are real estate, inventories, machineries and
equipments, shares and valuable papers.

Commitments and guaraniees

To meet the financial needs of customers, the Group enters into various irrevocable commitments and
contingent liabilities. Even though these obligations may not be recognised on the consolidated balance
sheet, they do contain credit risk and are therefore part of the overall risk of the Group.

Concentration of credit visk

The Group’s concentrations of risk are managed by client, by geographical region and by industry
sector.
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16/2007/QD-NHNN dated 18 Aprii 2007 of
the Governor of the State Bank of Vietnam)

Not considering collaterals, the maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was as follows:

L.oans and receivables

Balances with the SBY

Deposits with and loans to other credit institutions
Derivatives and other financial assets

1.oans and advances to customers — gross
Accrued interest and fees receivable

Other receivables

Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale debt securities

Held-to-maturity investments
Held-to-maturity securities — gross

Off-balance sheet commitments
Letters of credit commitments
Other guarantees

31/12/2014 31/12/2013
VND VND

622,869,095,680 500,116,724,24]
3,422,209,781,203 3,459,029,208,637
- 326,745,340
13,526,466,502,377 12,128,627,461,522
931,507,586,581 808,077,575,588
171,629,726,692 180,690,283,484
18,674,682,692,533 17,076,867,998,812
2,200,070,309,845 2,172,294,047,523
361,202,170,712 703,385,725,011
138,275,105,333 35,716,258,783
17,018,808,854 50,115,274,226
155,293,914,187 85,831,533,009
21,391,249,087,277 20,038,379,304,355
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the Governor of the State Bank of Vietnam)

An analysis of collaterals of financial assets which are neither past due nor impaired as at the reporting

date was as {ollows:

As at 31 December 2014 Secured Unsecured Total
VND VYND VYND
Loans and receivables
Balance with the SBY - 622,869,005,680 622,809,095,680
Deposits with and loans to other
credit institutions (i) - 3,422,209,781,203 3,422,209,781,203
Loans and advances to customers
- gross (ii) 13,150,861,695,682 79.259,747,573  13,230,121,443,255
Accrued interest and fees
receivable - 031,507,586,581 931,507,586,581
Other receivables - 171,629,726,0692 171,629,726,692
13,150,861,695,682  5,227,475,937,729  18,378,337,633,411
Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale debt securities (jil) - 2,200,070,309,845 2,200,070,309,845
Off-balance sheet commitments
Letters of credit commitments 13,078,466,508 125,196,638,825 138,275,105,333
Other guarantees 308,275,000 16,710,533,854 17,018,808,854
13,386,741,508 141,907,172,679 155,203,914,187
13,164,248,437,190  7,569,453,420,253  20,733,701,857,443
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As at 31 DPecember 2013 Secured Unsecured Total
VND VND VND
Loans and receivables
Balance with the SBV - 500,116,724,241 500,116,724,241
Deposits with and loans to other
credit institutions (i) - 3,459,029,208,637 3,459,029,208,637
Derivatives and other financial
assels - 326,745,340 326,745,340
Loans and advances to custoiners
- gross {ii) 11,670,142,728,109 73,251,446,049  11,743,394,174,158
Accrued interest and fees
receivable - 808,677,575,588 808,077,575,588
Qlher receivables - 180,690,283,484 180,690,283,484
11,670,142,728,109  5,021,491,983,339  16,691,634,711,448
Available-fer-sale financial assefs
Available-for-sale debt securities (iii) - 2,172,294,047,523 2,172,294,047,523
Held-to-maturity investments
Held-to-maturity securities -
gross (iit) - 703,385,725,011 703,385,725,011
- 2,875,679,772,534 2,875,679,772,534
Off-balance sheef commitments
Letters of credit commitments 33,863,786,600 1,852,472,183 35,716,258,783
Other guarantees 321,807,352 49,793,466,874 50,115,274,226
34,185,593,952 51,645,939,057 85,831,533,009
11,704,328,322,061  7,948,817,694,930  19,653,146,016,991

An analysis of collaterals against financial assets which are not past due but impaired as at 31 December

2014 was as follows:

Secured
VND

Held-to-maturity investments
Held-to-maturity securities -
gross (iii) -

Unsecured Total
VND VND
361,202,170,712 361,202,170,712

As at 31 December 2013, there were no financial assets which were not past due but impaired.
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16/2007/QD-NHNN dated 18 April 2007 of

the Governor of the State Bank of Vietnam)

the year ended 31 December 2014 (continued)

Deposits with and loans to other credit instifutions

Deposits with and loans to other credit institutions of the Group is mainly held with well-known
financial institutions. The Group’s Board of Directors does not foresee any significant credit risks from
these deposits and does not expect that these financial institutions may default and cause losses to the
Group.

Loans and advances fo custormers

Loans and advances to customers that are neither past due nor impaired are mostly due from customers
with good credit history with the Group. The Board of Directors believes that these loans are of high
credit quality.

Available-for-sale debt securities and held-to-maturity securities

The Board of Directors does not foresee any significant credit risks from these investments and does
not expect that these financial institutions may default and cause losses to the Group.

An aging analysis of past due but not impaired financial assets at the reporting date was as follows:

As at 31 Past due Past duc Past due
December 2014 from 10 to from 91 to from 181 to Past due
90 days 180 days 360 days over 360 days Total
YND VND VND VND VND
Loans and receivables
Loans and
advances to
customers - gross 7,118,536,946  5,859,131,838  6,163,503,339  57,709,395,013 76,850,567,136
As at 31 Past due Past due Past due
December 2013 from 10 to from 91 to from 181 to PPast due
90 days 180 days 360 days over 360 days Total
VND YND VND VND VND
Loans and receivables
Loans and
advances to
customers - gross  17,451,304,227 10,273,928,387  9,519,406,555  44,960,176,672 §2,204,815,841

75



(c)

Kien Long Commercial Joint Stock Bank Form BOS/TCTD - HN

16 — 18 Pham Hong That, Vinh Thanh Van Ward (Issued in accordance with Decision No.
Rach Gia City, Kien Giang Province, Vietnam 16/2007/QD-NHNN dated 18 April 2007 of
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the Governor of the State Bank of Vietham)

the year ended 31 December 2014 (confinued)

An aging analysis of impaired financial assets was as follows:

As at 31 Past due Past due Past due

December 2014 from 10 to from 91 to from 181 to Past due
90 days 180 days 360 days over 360 days Taotal
VND VND VYND VND YND

Loans and reccivables

Loans and

advances to

customers - gross  25,001,615,592  26,218,092,929 22,803,605,881 145,471,177,584  219,494,491,986

As at 31 Past due Past due Past due
December 20613 from 10 to from 91 to from 181 to Past due
90 days 180 days 366 days over 300 days Total
VND VND VND VND VND

Loans and receivables

Loans and

advances to

customers -

£ross 68,061,317,549 29,188,486,463  39,386,389,840 166,392,277,671 303,028,471,523

Refer to Note 35 for the types and carrying values of collaterals received from customers. The Group
has not determined the fair value of collaterals for past due and impaired financial assets because there
is no market price available for these collaterals and there is currently no guidance on determination of
fair value using valuation techniques under Vietnamese Accounting Standards or the Vietnamese
Accounting System for Credit Institutions stipulated by the State Bank of Vietnam. Fair values of these
collaterals may differ from their carrying values.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due.
Management of liquidity risk

The Group has established procedures and internal regulations on liquidity risk management in
accordance with the SBV’s regulations and commeon practices in Vietham. The Group’s regulations
on liquidity management is in order to: determine liquidity status and demand of the Group for cach
period; establish and maintain the usable funds in nccessary cases; set liquidity limits; ensure liquidity
ability of the Group against market’s movements; help the Group to operate stably, safely and
effectively.

In which, Treasury Department is responsible for the Group’s liquidity risk management. Treasury
Department’s liquidity management team is responsible for organising regular meetings and preparing
reports of liquidity status of the Group to submit to Asset and Liability Committee (FALCO”).
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the year ended 31 December 2014 (continued)

ALCO is responsible for reviewing quarterly reports relating to liquidity status of the Group; proposing
changes to terms, interest rates, prices of product and services of the bank in order to ensure that
liquidity risk is within the acceptable range and meet business goals; purchasing or selling securities
with certain natures and purposes to ensure that liquidity risk is within the acceptable range and meet
business goals; supervising terms of borrowings, fundings of the Group in order to ensure liquidity
capacity of the Group.

Liquidity indicators reports are managed daily o meet requirements for frequent risk management such
as general requirements for the Group’s liquidity, requirements for maintaining daily liquidity, general
requirements for liquidity allowance, daily liquidity determination, situations that are shortage of
liquidity in short-term, emergency or long-term. In addition, detail reports on prediction of ability to
meet short-term obligations within 7 days are also calculated based on updated data in order to mitigate
liquidity risk of the Group.

The fiquidity ratios according to the regulations of the SBV
The Group maintains a minimum ratio of 15% of the total current assets to the total liabilities.

A minimum ratio equals to 1 between the assets being due within the next 7 working days and the
liabilities being due within the next 7 working days for VND, EUR, GBP and USD (including USD
and other foreign currencies converted into USD using day-end inter-bank rate).

Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining contractual maturities

The following table presents an analysis of the assets and liabilities of the Group by groups based on
the remaining period from the reporting date to the maturity date. The actual maturity of assets or
liabilities may differ from contractual terms based on addenda to the contracts (if any).
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Rach Gia City, Kien Giang Province, Vietnam 16/2007/QD-NHNN dated 18 April 2007 of
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the Governor of the State Bank of Vietnam)

the year ended 31 December 2014 (continued)

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and
equity prices will affect the Group’s results of operations or the value of its holdings of financial
instruments, The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures
within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.

Management of markel risk

The Group makes calculations, evaluations and predictions regarding market fluctuations that can
impact on the short-term and medium-term results of operations, based on which the Group raises
warnings as well as suggests measures to increase profit and limit bad impacts on the balance sheet.
ALCO organises periodical meefings to update the market information so as to make decisions quickly
and timely to minimise the market risk to the lowest level as possible.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market inlerest rates,

The Group calculates and determines factors relating to interest rate on a monthly basis or when there
are the market fluctuations such as the gap between average interest rate input and outpuf; structure of
interest rate for mobilisation and lending by terins; calculates the difference in term between assets and
liabilities, etc. as basis for adjusting interest rate as well as estimating business effectiveness.

Daily, based on the regular updates interest rate of inter-bank and mobilised market of individuals and
organisations, the Treasury Department prepares reports, makes decisions for business plans and
recommends necessary adjustment of interest rates.

The following table shows the Group’s assets and liabilities categorised by the earlier of contractual

repricing or maturity date at the reporting date. The expected repricing and maturity dates may differ
significantly from contractual dates particularly with regard to the maturity of customers’ deposits.
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Kien Long Commereial Joint Stock Bank Form BOS/TCTD - HN

16 — 18 Pham Hong Thai, Vinh Thanh Van Ward {Issued in accordaince with Decision No.
Rach Gia City, Kien Giang Province, Vietnam 16/2007/QD-NHNN dated 18 April 2007 of
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the Governor of the State Bank of Vietnam)

the year ended 3§ December 2014 (contfinued)

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in
foreign exchange rates against VND, the accounting currency of the Group.

The major currency in the Group’s transactions is also VND. The Group’s loans and advances to
customers were mainly denominated in VND with the remainder in USD.

The Group applies position management system centralised at the Head Office to ensure the position
compliance status in accordance with the SBV’s regulations. Currency position is managed daily to
ensure the positions not exceeding the limits as stipulated by the SBV. All transactions leading to open
positions al branches must have counter-transactions with the Head Office.

The exchange rates are continuously updated with the market fluctuations to ensure the competitiveness
of exchange rates against inter-bank market and ensure the safety of exchange rate risk by the Treasury
Department, Basing on forecast analyses, the Treasury Department makes decisions on currency
positions (under regulations of the SBV) as well as ensure to mitigate risks against exchange rate
fluctuations.

The followings are the significant exchange rates applied by the Group at the reporting date:

31/12/2014 31/12/2013

USD/VND 21,246 21,135
EUR/VND 26,280 28,820
AUD/VND 17,674 19,012
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(e)

Kien Long Commercial Joint Stock Bank

16 — 18 Pham Hong Thai, Virh Thanh Van Ward
Rach Gia City, Kien Giang Provinee, Vietnam
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2014 (continued)

Form B05/TCTD - HN

fIssued in accordance with Decision No.
16/2007/0D-NHNN dated 18 April 2007 of
the Governor of the State Bank aof Vietnam)

At 31 December 2014, assuming that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant,
had USD strengthen or weaken against VND by 2%, the decrease or increase respectively in profit
after tax would have amounted to VND1,919 million (31/12/2013: had USD strengthen or weaken
against VND by 1%, the decrease or increase respectively in profit after tax would have amounted to

VND 1,040 million).

Fair values versus carrying amounts

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a Hability could be settled, between
knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length transaction.

The fair value of financial instruments, together with the carrying amounis shown in the consolidated

balance sheet are as follows:

Categorised as held-to-maturify investiments:
= Held-to-maturity securities

Categorised as loans and receivables:

» Balances with the SBV

* Deposits with and loans to other credit institutions
* Loans and advances to customers

* Accrued interest and fee receivables

= Other receivables

Categorised as available-for-sale financial assets:
s Available-for-sale equity securities
STB
MDB
= Available-for-sale debt securities
= Capital contribution, long-term investments

Categorised as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:

» Derivative and other financial liabilities

Categorised as financial liabilities at amortised cost:
» Deposits and borrowings from other credit institutions

* Deposits from customers
= Accrued interest and fee payables
= Other liabilities

31/12/2014
Carrying amount Fair value
VND VND
325,212,993,310 (*)
622,869,095,680  622,869,095,680
3,422,209,781,203 *)
13,389,966,524,994 ™
931,507,586,581 (*)
171,629,726,692 (*)
523,283,750,000  523,283,750,000
1,466,000,000 (%)
2,200,070,309,845 (*
46,199,100,000 (*
(7,004,652,427) &)
(2,781,982,656,399) (*)
(16,570,527,274,744) (*)
(290,984,323,840) *)
(37,029,513,689) (*)
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Kien Long Commercial Joint Stock Bank

16 — 18 Pham Hong Thai, Vinh Thanh Van Ward
Rach Gia City, Kien Giang Province, Vicinam
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2014 (continued)

Form B05/TCTD - HN

{Issued in accordance with Decision No.
16/2007/QD-NHNN dated 18 April 2007 of
the Governor of the State Bank of Vietnam)

31/12/2013

Carrying amount
VND

Categorised as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:

» Derivative and other financial asseis 326,745,340
Categorised as held-to-maturity investments:
» Held-to-maturity securities 703,385,725,011
Categorised as loans and receivables:
» Balances with the SBY 500,116,724,241
* Deposits with and foans to other credit institutions 3,459,029,208,637
= Loans and advances to customers 12,003,522,481,171
» Accrued interest and fee receivables 808,077,575,588
= Other receivables 180,690,283,484
Categorised as available-for-sale financial assets:
* Available-for-sale equity securities
STB 556,817,750,000
MDB 1,466,000,000
= Available-for-sale debt securities 2,172,294,047,523
» Capital contribution, long-term investments 69,521,100,000

Categorised as financial liabilities at amortised cost:
* Deposits and borrowings from other credit institutions  (3,627,404,022,212)

* Deposits from customers (13,303,626,908,749)
= Financed, entrusted and borrowed funds bore risks

by the Bank (78,754,950,033)
» Valuable papers issued (500,000,000,000)
= Accrued interest and fee payables (296,975,803,483)
= Other liabilities {56,204,889,426)

Fair value

VYND

()

*)

500,116,724,241
(*)
(*)
(*)
™

556,817,750,000
(*)
(*)
*

The Group has not determined fair values of these financial instruments for disclosure in the
consolidated financial statements because information about their market prices are not available and
there is currently no guidance on determination of fair value using valuation techniques under
Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the Vietnamese Accounting System for Credit Institutions stipulated
by the State Bank of Victnam and the relevant statutory requirements applicable to financial reporting.

The fair values of these financial instruments may differ from their carrying amounts.
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41.

42.

Iien Long Commercial Joint Stock Banl Form B05/TCTD - HN

16 — 18 Pham Hong Thai, Vinh Thanh Van Ward (Issued in accordance with Decision No.

Rach Gia City, Kien Giang Province, Vietnam 16/2007/QD-NHNN dated 18 April 2007 of
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the Governor of the State Bank of Vietiam)

the year ended 31 December 2014 (continued)

Lease commitments

The future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases were as follows:

31/12/2014 31/12/2013
VND VND
Within one year 32,923,350,808 34,755,796,180
Within two to five years 99,059,240,106 106,450,202,580
More than five years 52,947,102,600 66,774,339,800

184,929,693,514 207,980,338,560

Corresponding figures

Certain corresponding figures have been reclassified to conform with the current year’s presentation. A
comparison of the amounts previously reported and as reclassified is as follows:

2013 2013
VYND VND
(reclassified) (as previously
reported)
Consolidated statement of cash flows
Interest and similar income received 2,386,280,825,403  3,467,924,082,289
Interest and similar expenses paid (1,293,485,059,847) (2,383,074,527,777)

30 March 2015

Prepared by:
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Thi Duyen Pham Thi My Chi ~ Vo Van Chau
Accountant Chief Accountani General Director
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